
 

1 

 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 

DATE:  TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2025 

TIME:    1:00 P.M.  

LOCATION:   NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE –  TIMBERWOLF CONFERENCE CENTE R/D100, 

  1000 W. CAMPUS DRIVE, WAUSAU, WI 54401 AND VIA ZOOM 

  WEBINAR ID: 885 5427 7024 | PASSCODE: 309831 

CALL TO ORDER 

A. Compliance with Open Meetings Law (Wis. Stat. 19.81-19.88) 

B. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag  

C. Public Comment 

Public Comment periods are not considered to be public hearings or a forum for public debate. 
No person may speak more than once to an issue or for a period longer than three (3) minutes. 
Individuals wishing to speak during this period must complete the sign-in form at the meeting 
location no less than fifteen (15) minutes prior to the start of the meeting. The total amount of 
time devoted to public comment at any given meeting will not exceed thirty (30) minutes unless 
extended by a majority vote of the Board. 

ORGANIZATIONAL ITEMS 

A. Oath of Office for Appointed District Board Members – Nikki Kopp 

a. Rainer Shooter 

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE UPDATE 

A. Student Representative Update – Grace Koehler 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

B. Approval of Minutes from January 14, 2025, Board of Trustees Regular Meeting  

CONSENT VOTING AGENDA 

A. Approval of Consent Voting Agenda Including:  

a. New Early Childhood Education Apprenticeship Program 

b. Receipts + Expenditures  

c. Personnel Changes  

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

1/81

https://ntc.zoom.us/j/88554277024?pwd=sKkHRnysua3lnjcfEvXIGDWJxbi8xZ.1


 

2 

 

A. President’s Report  

a. Capital Budget Philosophy + Goals – Chet Strebe 

b. Comments from Informational Update  

B. Chairperson’s Report  

a. Spring 2025 Board Appointment Cycle:  

b. Reminder to Complete Statement of Economic Interests (SEI) by 4/30/2025 

c. Next Regular NTC Board Meeting: Tuesday, March 4, 2025 

C. Information  

a. Advisory Meeting Minutes 

b. Upcoming Meetings + Events 

c. Good News 

CLOSED SESSION (IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE ABOVE OPEN MEETING) 

A. Adjourn the Board into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(d) for 

the purpose of:  

a. Consideration of Existing and Future Strategies for Crime Prevention  

OPEN SESSION  

A. Reconvene the Board into Open Session to confirm any action deemed necessary as a result of 

the Closed Session.   

MEETING ADJOURN 

 

Note: Meetings of the Northcentral Technical College District Board are held in compliance with 
Wisconsin’s “Open Meetings Law”.  

 

Mission: Northcentral Technical College enriches our communities by providing high quality learner and 
employer focused educational pathways that transform lives. 

2/81



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
MEETING DATE:   February 11, 2025 
 
TOPIC:   Early Childhood Apprenticeship Program    
 
POLICY     Community Benefit Statement 2 
    Employers have an available and skilled workforce.  
DATA/RESULTS:   

The Early Childhood Apprenticeship Program provides a new pathway for learners in pursuing a 
professional career in the early childhood and child care industry. A graduate of the Early Child-
hood apprenticeship program supports the cognitive, social, emotional, and physical development 
of children through developmentally appropriate programming and environments.  Completers of 
the program will be able to use best practices in teaching and learning, demonstrate professional-
ism, integrate health, safety, and nutrition practices, and apply child development theories to prac-
tice. 
 
The demand for Early Childhood professionals continues to be high throughout the state and 
within the NTC District. There are currently over 800 jobs within the district and demand is ex-
pected to remain strong. Early childcare staff shortages have created long waiting lists of over 1 
year for childcare, impacting the ability for parents to find affordable care and return to the work-
force. NTC already offers a successful Early Childhood Education Associate Degree and an Early 
Childhood Teacher Technical Diploma program. By offering the Early Childhood Apprentice pro-
gram, NTC can provide another flexible avenue for students to gain the necessary skills for this 
occupation. This program also meets specific industry requests for Early Childhood apprenticeship 
in the District. Further, the program aligns with statewide efforts by the Department of Workforce 
Development (DWD) and the Bureau of Apprenticeship Standards (BAS) to launch apprenticeship 
programs in new industries and non-traditional occupations.  
 
This apprenticeship will align with the technical diploma, providing graduation students with a dual 
credential: a technical diploma and a BAS Journey Worker card.  We anticipate serving approxi-
mately 6-12 apprentices per term upon initial implementation of this program in Fall 2025, with 
strong potential for growth.   
 

The College wishes to submit the Early Childhood Apprenticeship Program District Request form 
to the Wisconsin Technical College System Office for consideration. By approving the submission 
of the program request, the College will continue to the next step in the process for developing this 
as a WTCS approved apprenticeship program.  
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:     PROPOSED MOTION: 
  

 Consent Agenda  Approval of program request for Early Childhood Apprenticeship program 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true 
as of this date. 
 
Signed_______________________________________ Dated_______2/11/25__________________ 

3/81



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
MEETING DATE: February 11, 2025 
 
TOPIC:   Receipts & Expenditures 
  
POLICY 1.1 – Presidential Expectations – The President, in execution of his/her duties, shall not cause or 
allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either irresponsible or in viola-
tion of commonly accepted business and professional ethics, or that results in failure to be accredited by 
the Higher Learning Commission. 
 
INTERPRETATION: To avoid violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics NTC will fol-
low Wisconsin statute 38.12 District Board Duties (2) “…All expenditures exceeding $2500 shall be ap-
proved by the district board.”  Also, in compliance with Wisconsin statute 38.12(4) District board duties, 
“The publication proceedings shall include a statement of receipts and expenditures in the aggregate.” 
 
DATA/RESULTS: The following Status of Funds listing receipts and expenditures including operating trans-
fers in the aggregate is included for informational purposes as of December 31, 2024 (preliminary). 
 
 
F1-F7 Revenue:                   $64,073,508.96 
F1-F7 Expense:                    $52,761,420.39 
 

 
 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:       PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
Signed:         Dated:   February 11, 2025 

 

4/81



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
MEETING DATE:    February 11, 2025 
 
TOPIC:        Personnel Changes 
 
 
POLICY 1.1 – Presidential Expectations – The President, in execution of his/her duties, shall not cause or allow 
any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either irresponsible or in violation of 
commonly accepted business and professional ethics, or that results in failure to be accredited by the Higher 
Learning Commission. 
 
INTERPRETATION: NTC will follow Wisconsin Statute 38.12 (3) “The district board shall employ and fix the com-
pensation…” and Wisconsin Statute 118.22 (2) “…No teacher may be employed… except by a majority vote of 
the full membership of the board.  Nothing in this section prevents the modification or termination of a con-
tract by mutual agreement of the teacher and the board.” 
 
DATA/RESULTS: A request is made to approve the following personnel changes: 
 
New Hires:  

 Susan Pernsteiner – Faculty, Dental EFDA 
 

Resignations:  

 Stacy Kunz - Custodian, Trainer 

 Rachel Holzinger - Faculty, Communications 

 Maggie Long – Academic Coach 

 Paul Strehlow – Supervisor, Custodial & Central Services 

 Liberty Heidmann – Supervisor, Advising 

 Casey Rozowski – Faculty, Math 

 Martha Scott – Assistant, Student Services 
 

 
 

AGENDA CATEGORY:     PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                                  (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as of 
this date. 
 
Signed_______________________________________ Dated ____2/11/25______ 

5/81



  
 

 
Sign Language Interpreting in Education 
Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 

Date: 10/30/2024 
Time: 5:00 p.m. – 6:30 p.m. 

Location: Zoom 
Attendees 

Industry Members: 
• Katy Bauer – School District of Niagara 
• Kallie Freel – Lamira School District 
• Amy Miller – Two Rivers School District 
• Jennifer Sartori – Lamira School District and SLIE 

Advisory Committee Chairperson  
Interpreter: 
• Dawn Koplitz – Interpreter 
 

NTC Team: 
• Erin McNally – Learning Manager, School of Business 
• Vicki Shapiro – Sign Language Interpreting in 

Education Faculty 
• Chanel Volpel – Sign Language Interpreting in 

Education Instructional Assistant 
• Valerie Becker – Administrative Assistant, School of 

Business  
• Sheri Rehman – Student Success Advisory 

Industry Discussion 
Shifts in Educational Interpreting 
Kallie Freel: Noted the differences in traditional interpreting versus more hands-on educational interpreting. She sits with 
students, uses textbooks, and takes notes during class to ensure engagement, emphasizing that interpreting in education 
goes beyond simply translating what the teacher says. She emphasized that hands-on interaction is essential for student 
success. 
Katy Bauer: Noted that her approach also involves closely following materials with the student and tutoring in addition to 
interpreting.  
 
Virtual Interpreting and Technology 
Katy Bauer:  Noted the rise in job postings for virtual interpreters and noted that virtual interpreting may not suit all age 
groups or situations. However, virtual roles could help address interpreter shortages in rural districts. 
Kallie Freel: Noted challenges in virtual interpreting, such as poor microphone use by teachers and increased student 
behavioral issues, which impact the quality of interaction. Virtual interpreting, while potentially useful for older students, 
is more costly and often less effective for younger students. 
Jennifer Sartori: Stated that interpreting technology is improving. She discussed the importance of preparing students for 
virtual interpreting settings they may encounter outside of school, like at medical appointments, and emphasized teaching 
students self-advocacy skills to navigate virtual interpreting successfully. 
 
Student Advocacy and Behavior Policies 
Amy Miller: Shared her school’s approach of involving interpreters in addressing negative student behaviors, emphasizing 
that they contribute to the classroom environment by actively addressing issues when they see them; most school districts 
do not allow interpreters to address students’ behaviors. Her school district has also implemented a no cell phone policy 
and has seen a significant improvement in student behaviors due to this new policy, as well. She also praised her student’s 
advocacy skills, noting her student’s insistence on in-person interpreting when virtual was offered as a backup. Her student 
has even solely used technology devices when an in-person interpretation is not available rather than use a virtual 
interpreter.  
Jennifer Sartori: Noted that her school district also does not allow cell phones, and they have also seen an improvement 
in student behaviors. She also underscored the importance of advocacy, teaching students to voice their needs and adapt 
to different interpreting environments. 
 

6/81



  
 

 
 
Instructional Area/Program 
Enrollment Update 
Vicki Shapiro: The program currently has 9 students, down from 12 at the start of the term. This new cohort is highly 
motivated, collaborative, and engaged, often studying together. Most classes are held in person, with only one online 
course: Interpreting in Educational Settings. An open lab has been introduced twice a week to help support students, a 
resource that wasn’t available in previous years. 
Program Updates 
Vicki Shapiro: Last spring, we began program mapping with Stephanie Vobornik, now Director of Academic Excellence, to 
ensure that program outcomes, competencies and learning objectives for each course align. We’re ensuring that 
competencies align with learning objectives through a Practice Assessment model, where each competency is labeled as 
Introduce (I), Practice (P), or Assess (A). For example, ASL 1 focuses on introducing competencies, ASL 2 on practicing 
them, and ASL 3 on assessment.  
Erin McNally: All programs at NTC are going through the program mapping process, which is a well thought out and 
detailed process. It will take time to get through every class but so far, we are finding that Vicki and Chanel are doing a lot 
of things right in the SLIE program. 
College Wide Updates 
Erin McNally reviewed Fall 2024 college-wide initiatives, including new programs, NTC’s Health Mobile Lab, Community 
Safety Simulation Center, and the University Transfer program. She highlighted courses in Workforce Training, student 
support resources, and Handshake for employer connections. She also announced upcoming events: NTC’s Community 
Open House on November 6th, Mind Trekkers on April 11-12, and the Spring 2025 Advisory Committee Summit. 
Next meeting schedule & agenda items discussion 
The date for the next meeting is Wednesday, March 12, 2025, at 5:00 pm via Zoom. 
 

7/81



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Welcome 
 

Stephanie Christensen welcomed everyone to the meeting and thanked them for attending.  Introductions were 
made. 

 

Highlights From The Previous Meetings 
 

The previous meeting minutes were distributed in advance for the committee to review.  Stephanie Christensen 
asked if there were any additions or deletions to the minutes.  There were no specific follow-ups to the previous 
meeting minutes. 
 

Enrollment and Program Updates 

• Enrollment - Michael Kowal shared the current enrollments which include 9 first-semester students 
comprised of 6 full-time students, 1 part-time student, and 2 students enrolled in classes to transfer to 
Michigan Tech.  The third semester has 5 students enrolled.  The majority of second-year students are 

employed. 

• Internships – Six students will be working toward an internship.  The students will be surveyed to see 

which students would be looking for the internship for the upcoming summer and that information will 

be passed on to committee members.    

• Transfer Agreements – The committee was given an overview of the transfer agreement with Michigan 

Tech.  The agreement will transfer two years of NTC credits toward a Michigan Tech degree, allowing 

students to finish a bachelor’s degree with an additional 2.5 years.  One benefit from this transfer 

8/81



agreement is cost savings to students, as they will receive in-state tuition when they transfer to 

Michigan Tech.  NTC is also working on an articulation agreement with UW-River Falls, UW-Stout, and 

UW-Plattville. 
 

Curriculum Modifications  
 

The program has no curriculum modifications at this time. 
 

Program and Curriculum Discussion 

• Outreach Efforts - Heidi and Michael have been promoting this program in area schools, including 
creating a new PowerPoint which was presented to high school counselors.  Our video production 
students are creating a promotional video for our website, which will be shared with the committee 
once available.  Program banners are also being developed.  An event was held at DC Everest, as that 
high school runs engineering class in conjunction with Engineering Tomorrow.  A promotional flyer was 
developed using a QR code for individuals to access more specific program information.       

• Workshop Development – Tom Rodemier is developing classroom workshops for area middle and high 
school areas.  These workshops also allow rural school to see what engineering programs offer without 
traveling to NTC. We started using these workshops in October and they are being well received.  Tom 
Rodemeier has created specific and creative activities promoting engineering. 

• Engineering Tomorrow - Heidi shared information on the Engineering Tomorrow labs which are held 
here at NTC.  Civil Engineering labs are being developed for inclusion on the list of labs for area high 
school students.  We would like to develop a virtual lab as well as a hands-on lab for Engineering 
Tomorrow.  Heidi asked if any of the committee members would like to help develop a lab, to contact 
Michael.  Michael asked members to look at the website located at EnginneringTomorrow.org and send 
him any ideas they may have for a new lab. 

• High School Student Engagement - A discussion was held on how to engage more students in the 
program, particularly those from smaller schools, and it was suggested to reach out to these schools for 
potential partnerships. The suggestion was made to have high school students work with NTC students, 
which could help students identify with the program.  It was proposed to create a mentorship program 
where students could interact with professionals during classroom sessions or through mini-projects. 
The idea of a "coffee with the pros" or "coffee with engineers" was also discussed, where students 
could have informal discussions with professionals.  Heidi mentioned a potential collaboration with 
Theron Peterson, Wausau West High School Instructor, as a possible opportunity to spread information 
about Civil Engineering.  Members were encouraged to reach out to Theron directly for potential 
opportunities. Heidi also mentioned that the new principal at Newman School seemed more open to 
promoting this program. Committee members could have a follow-up meeting at the April Advisory 
Meeting to discuss program-specific feedback from committee members. 

• Program Student Engagement - It was proposed to create a mentorship program where students could 
interact with professionals during classroom sessions or through mini-projects. The idea of a "coffee 
with the pros" or "coffee with engineers" was also discussed, where students could have informal 

9/81



discussions with professionals.  Information was shared on the recent NTC Career Fair, and it was 
suggested that a program-focused career fair for Engineering and Advanced Manufacturing students 
might be beneficial.  Heidi shared details on recruitment, including NTC’s Preview Day event and the 
Build My Future event.  There was a discussion of the importance of having graduates complete the 
graduate feedback surveys that are sent to them after graduation.  Heidi also mentioned the possibility 
of students being more involved in the Career Fair, perhaps through student presentations.   

• Course Review - Michael Kowal provided an overview of the courses offered in their program, including 
Autocad, Introduction to Civil Engineering, and Survey and Mapping. He emphasized the importance of 
hands-on learning and real-world experience for their students. Toward the end, he encouraged 
questions and feedback from the attendees.  

• Adjunct Instructors - Heidi discussed the need for adjunct instructors and the current hiring 
atmosphere.  Anyone interested, should contact Heidi directly.   

 

AI and the Workplace  
 

A discussion revolved around the use of AI in various aspects of life, including education and the workforce. 
Committee members agreed that there are several benefits to the use of AI, such as efficiency and accuracy, 
but also expressed concerns about its reliability and the need for fact-checking. The importance of teaching 
students to critically evaluate the information provided by AI and to provide references for their answers was 
emphasized. The conversation also touched on the generational differences in the workforce, with the 
participants noting the expectations for new hires are expected to have increased knowledge of new 
technologies.  
 

Industry Discussions 

 

Current hiring challenges and the competitive nature of the job market were discussed, noting an increase in 
local candidates for job openings.  Members shared workloads are consistent and several companies have 
employment opportunities.  State positions have a hard time competing with industry regarding salaries but 
recently have had a large number of applicants.  Some members noticed a slight slowdown in projects, but 
anticipate an increase for next year.  

The construction industry has been having a longer season, so employee burnout has not been as significant as 
in the last two years, but finding suitable candidates is still a challenge. Stress and burnout were issues in 
previous years.    

It was mentioned that younger employees who have been through Covid react differently than older individuals 
to workplace situations. There was a discussion regarding employees under the age of 30 who seem to struggle 
with simple tasks.  A member shared that it is taking approximately 18 months to train new individuals.   
 

Update on WTPD Seminar 
 

Information and fliers were provided regarding NTC’s training opportunities, including the CDL Accelerated 
Program, Apprenticeships, Entrepreneurship Summit, AI Workshops, and many other leadership training 

10/81



opportunities that are offered through our Workforce Training and Professional Development (WTPD) team. 
 

Spring Advisory Summit 

 

The committee was informed that the format for the spring advisory committee will change. All committee 
members will meet on the same day, April 16th. A flyer with specific information was shared. If any specific 
matters need to be addressed in the spring, a meeting can be arranged or electronic communication can be 

used  
 

Upcoming Events 

 

Heidi discussed the upcoming Preview Day on March 11th and the STEM Fest on April 11th-12th, inviting the 
team to participate as exhibitors or sponsors. Heidi expressed interest in the team's feedback on career fairs and 
suggested a more focused approach for the fall, with each program having its event. She encouraged the team 
to reach out with any ideas or suggestions. 
 

NTC College-Wide Updates 

 

A PowerPoint with College-Wide Updates was shared with the Advisory Committee. 
 

Next Meeting Details 
 

The next meeting date will be Wednesday, April 16, 2025. 
 
 

Contact Details – 

Iain Cameron 
Dean, School of Engineering and Advanced 
Manufacturing 
cameron@ntc.edu 

 

 
Ken Parker 
Associate Dean, School of Engineering and Advanced 
Manufacturing 
parker@ntc.edu 

Stephanie Christensen 
Advisory Committee Chair (Vice President-EMCS, 
Inc.) 
schristensen@emcsinc.com 

 
Susan Clark 
Administrative Assistant, School of Engineering 
and Advanced Manufacturing 
clarks@ntc.edu 

Michael Kowal 
Faculty, Civil Engineering Technology 
kowal@ntc.edu 

 

Heidi Latendresse 
Learning Manager, School of Engineering and 
Advanced Manufacturing 
latendresse@ntc.edu 

11/81



  
 

 

Legal Studies/Paralegal 
Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 

Date: 11/21/2024 
Time: 4:30 p.m. – 5:45p.m. 

Location: Zoom 

In Attendance 

Practicing Lawyers Paralegal from 
Private Sector 

Paralegals from 
Public Sector 

General Public 
Members 

Faculty Administration 

Kourtney Imig: 
Attorney; Winter, 
Winter & Behrens 

Joann Mancl: 
Paralegal; Crooks, 

Low & Connell 

Carmen Stone: 
Legal Advocate; 

Judicare Legal Aid 

 Tom Wendt Dr. Brooke Schindler: 
Dean School of 

Business 

Crystal Sargent: 
Attorney; Hougum 

Law Firm 

Erin Radtke: 

Paralegal; County 
Materials 

   Dr. Jason Schenzel: 
Associate Dean, 

School of Business 

     Jessica Katcher: 
Student Success 

Advisory 

     Valerie Becker: 
Administrative 

Assistant, School of 
Business 

Absent 

Practicing Lawyers Paralegal from 
Private Sector 

Paralegals from 
Public Sector 

General Public 
Members 

Faculty Administration 

Amanda Ley: 
Assistant Corporation 
Counsel; Marathon 
County 

 

Angela Gonzalez: 
Paralegal; Ruder 
Ware 

Nikki Pretzler: 
Judicare Legal Aid 

Kari Schwingle: 
Professional 

Recruiter; Express 
Employment 

  

Kristin Slonski: 
Attorney; Judicare 
Legal Aid 

Brittany Dishaw: 
(Heath) – Paralegal 

 

Nicole Grawey    

 
Jen Borchardt: 
Paralegal;  
Terwilliger Law Firm 

Becky Schneider; 
Judicial Assistant; 
Marathon 
County- Branch 2 

   

Instructional Area/Program 

American Bar Association (ABA) Site Visit Updates  
Tom Wendt: We addressed and resolved concerns from the ABA site visit last spring, securing official ABA approval in August for 
seven years with a mid-term review in 3–4 years. NTC is now one of seven ABA-approved programs in Wisconsin and will be listed 
on the Paralegal Association and Bar Association websites. Updates are being made to NTC’s website, marketing materials, and 
social media to reflect the accreditation. 

12/81



  
 

 
Program Updates 
Tom Wendt: We have implemented live student meetings since the ABA visit to foster peer interaction. Rich Poirier, an attorney 
and former president of Church Mutual, has been hired as an adjunct faculty member for the Paralegal program starting in January. 
Tom attended the AAfPE national conference in Washington DC, which focused on AI in the legal field, which he described as the 
best conference he’s attended. NTC also hosted its third on-site legal clinic. This fall we had an estate planning clinic in 
collaboration with Judicare, which included 6 students, 7 attorneys, and Judicare staff to assist 12 clients, draft over 50 documents, 
and provide hands-on learning while strengthening community ties.  
NTC Library Resources  
Tom Wendt: NTC’s library primarily operates as a virtual resource but also includes a small law section for traditional use. Most 
materials are accessible online, with Nexis Uni serving as a key research tool available to all students and faculty. Tom has 
collaborated with library staff to develop writing assignments for the legal writing class, encouraging students to utilize library 
resources, including electronic books and periodicals. 
Program Effectiveness: 
Tom Wendt: There are 31 students currently enrolled in classes, with 9 of them being new this fall. To date, 11 students have 
graduated from the program, with 4–5 more expected in December. Law classes have been added to three other programs at NTC 
including Business Law in the Business Management program, Employment Law in the Human Resources program, and Hospitality 
Law & Regulations recently added to the Hospitality program.  
Enrollment Update: 
Jessica Katcher: Explained that the transition to Workday has impacted enrollment tracking. We currently have 99 students listed 
as active in the Paralegal program, though many take breaks but remain enrolled. As an advisor, Jessica works on building 
relationships with new students and connecting them with Tom to improve retention. She noted 5 new students matriculated for 
spring. 

Industry Discussion 

Industry Trends 
Erin Radke: Highlighted the use of AI tools like ChatGPT for drafting legal documents, noting that significant modifications are 
often required. Discussions involving AI have surfaced in relation to litigation. She has also noticed an increase in hiring legal 
secretaries and legal assistants and has also seen general council leaving for remote roles. 
Carmen Stone: Stressed caution when using AI, ensuring no client data is input, but acknowledged its usefulness for rewording 
professional documents. They just launched a new requirement for multifactor authentication due to malpractice insurance 
compliance. She also noted irregularities in waiving filing fees among the different courts throughout Wisconsin specifically for 
statutory court forms. 
Crystal Sargent: Suggested incorporating bookkeeping skills into the curriculum, such as ledgers, capital gains/losses, and 
accounting software like QuickBooks. She noted that her firm is growing and looking for skilled paralegals and customer service 
representatives. She also mentioned the growing demand for remote work among younger hires and emphasized the need for 
law firms to adapt. 
• Thomas Wendt: Recognized the importance of preparing students for remote work and suggested integrating related skills 

into courses. Tom also proposed exploring short courses on specialized topics, including accounting software, and discussed 
using AI to simplify client communication. 

College-Wide Updates 

Jason Schenzel: Reviewed the Fall 2024 College-wide initiatives presentation with the committee highlighting new programs, 
NTC’s new Health Mobile Lab, Community Safety Simulation Center, and the University Transfer program at NTC. The presentation 
also highlighted courses offered through NTC’s Workforce Training and Development division, student support resources, and 
Handshake, which connects students with employers. Additionally, he announced the Save the Dates for NTC’s Mind Trekkers on 
April 11th & 12th, and the Spring 2025 Advisory Committee Summit.  

Next meeting schedule & agenda items discussion 

The next meeting will NTC’s college-wide Advisory Committee Summit: Wednesday, April 16, 2025, 7:30am-11:30am 

13/81



IT Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes  
Date: 12/5/2024 

Time: 4:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 
Location: Zoom 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

• Matt Hall – Greenheck; Sr. Application Developer 

• Eric Buhrow – Skyward; Technical Consulting Team Manager 

• Jacob Hale - Dirks Group; Chief Operating Officer 

• Matt Hildebrandt - StrataDefense; President & CEO 
 

NTC Team

• Dr. Jason Schenzel – Dean of Academic Technology 

• Clay Hess – Faculty, IT 

• Dominic Gruetzmacher – Faculty, IT 

• Ken Hallas – Faculty, IT 

• JJ Minarcin – Faculty, IT 

• Josh Kretzschmar – Faculty, IT 

• Josh Stutting – Faculty, IT 

• Zach Thunder - Faculty, IT 

• Scott Biscobing – Faculty, IT 

• Jake Seever – School of Learning Technologies; 
Learning Coordinator 

• Valerie Becker – School of Learning Technologies; 
Administrative Assistant 

• Bill Schulz - Student Success Advisor 

Instruction Area/Program(s) 

Gray DI Software:  

• Dr. Jason Schenzel: NTC is using a new software tool called Gray Di for decision intelligence, which is helping us 
understand the cost of programs and the need in the local industry. He mentioned that the college is looking to 
maximize its offerings and bring down the cost per person. 

 
Web Designer Program Updates:  

• Jason Schenzel: There have been discussions regarding interdisciplinary options for this program such as collaborating 
with the Graphics, Video Production, or Digital Marketing programs.  

• Clay Hess: Is interested in feedback from the committee on how they are handling web design and development. 
 
Data Analytics Program Updates:  

• Jason Schenzel: Discussed the addition of four new AI courses to several of the IT programs. The addition of these AI 
courses aligns with the AI initiatives at NTC and all these new AI classes will fall under the Data Analytics 156 category 
although they can be used within other IT programs. These courses taken collectively will also form an embedded 
technical diploma called the Foundations of AI. We will likely end up tailoring these courses to individual programs, 
but we want to start with some courses that are cross functional. Our Institutional Research Department also sent out 
a survey regarding these new courses to advisory committee members. 
o AI Fundamentals Course 1 credit: Introduces the fundamental concepts and history of artificial intelligence (AI), 

including machine learning, neural networks, large language models and natural language processing. Students will 
explore AI technologies, review their development over time, and study their impact on society. This foundation 
will provide students with the necessary framework to understand and work with AI in future courses and 
professional settings.  

o Business Applications of AI Couse 1 credit: Explores the use of AI in modern business environments, focusing on 
practical applications such as predictive analytics, customer relationship management, and automation. Students 
will analyze real-world case studies, assess the benefits and challenges of integrating AI into business operations, 
and explore AI-powered business tools and platforms.  

o Ethics of AI Course 1 credit: Examines the ethical, legal, and societal implications of artificial intelligence (AI). 
Students will explore issues such as bias in algorithms, data privacy, and the broader impact of AI on employment 
and social structures and will utilize frameworks for ethical AI development and deployment, emphasizing 
responsible data-driven decision making.  

14/81



 
o Foundations of Data Engineering Course (3 credits): This course provides a comprehensive introduction to data 

engineering principles and foundational cloud computing for data. Students will learn to build and maintain 
scalable data pipelines, process and store large datasets, and implement cloud-based solutions for secure and 
efficient data management. With a focus on real-world applications, this course explores data ingestion, 
transformation, and storage strategies using AWS tools. By combining essential cloud computing skills with data 
engineering techniques, students will develop the expertise needed to support analytics, machine learning, and 
business intelligence workflows across diverse environments. 

 
Networking Specialist Program Updates:  

• Josh Kretzschmar: Josh provided updates on a new course he is creating that was mentioned during the last meeting, 
Cloud Networking and Security Essentials, designed to fill a gap in the networking program by introducing cloud 
fundamentals, including architecture, security protocols, and access management. Using AWS Academy materials, the 
course aims to make the program more accessible by offering remote learning options, as it’s currently not fully online. 
Plans also include revising the Capstone course for remote access and integrating AWS as a prerequisite for the cloud 
course. 
o Jason Schenzel: Jason mentioned that AWS Academy is free, so we have a lot of options to incorporate aspects of 

AWS into our courses. 
•  Ken Hallas: VMware has been acquired by Broadcom, which no longer offers educational licensing. This change would 

cost $9,000 for the NetLabs environment, prompting the need to find a more affordable solution for managing virtual 
servers. VMware will remain in use until the current licensing expires next semester. One potential alternative is 
ProxBox, though it hasn’t been explored yet. He noted that the EVS class will undergo some changes to ensure students 
have access to current industry tools that are also cost-effective. Updates on the approach will be shared at the next 
meeting. 
o Matt Hildebrandt: With changes with Broadcom, they are no longer customer friendly. Proxbox does not have a lot 

of professional support, either, and he does not personally see a lot of HyperV clients. 
o Scott Biscobing: Noted that the Windows Server class does have a module on HyperV. 

 
Computer Support Specialist Program Updates:  

• Jason Schenzel: We have an opportunity to work with a Digital Divide grant partnered with our Workforce Training 
and Professional Development division at NTC to bring refurbishing of computers to the college using our students to 
help with this. We are still discussing what we can commit to for this as there is not a place in the program as it would 
be a challenge to incorporate this for our remote students; therefore, this may be a service that our Computer Club 
provides as a service to the community.  

• Josh Stutting: We are trying to incorporate as much generative AI training on a daily basis so that grads are ready to 
help support end users who will undoubtedly have questions about AI. 

 
Software Developer Program Updates:  

• Dominic Gruetzmacher: As he is developing the three new AI courses that Jason mentioned, he welcomes feedback 
from committee members on what they feel is relevant to have in the classes from an industry perspective. 

 
Program Modifications:  
10-150-3 Software Developer Associate’s Degree – Jason Schenzel: Add 1 credit of AI Fundamentals to this program for 
a total of 66 credits, which will still need internal provost approval. 

• The committee members approved this change. 
10-152-3 Computer Support Specialist Associate’s Degree – Jason Schenzel: Remove 3 credits of Office Level 3 (10-103-
245) as levels 1 & 2 give a sound foundation of Microsoft Office for students. This would allow us to add 1 credit from AI 
Fundamentals, 1 credit from Business Applications or AI, and 1 credit from Ethics of AI. 

• The committee members approved these changes 
10-156-3 Data Analytics Associate’s Degree - JJ Minarcin: Remove 3 credits of Modeling and Machine Learning (10-156-
106) as this course is currently very code-based on researching Python and writing script in Python while students follow 
along with their textbook and right now, AI is doing these coding exercises more efficiently. By replacing this with the 3-

15/81



 
credit Foundations of Data Engineering course it will allow us to focus more on the data engineering aspect which aligns 
better with job placement for students on the 2-year track. We will also remove 3-credits from Optimization and 
Simulation 1 (10-156-110), 2 (10-156-112), and 3 (10-156-116) as these courses are more managerial and do not align with 
what students’ need from their 2-year degree. These three credits will be replaced with 1 credit of AI Fundamentals, 1 
credit of Business Applications of AI, and 1 credit of Ethics of AI. 

• The committee members approved these changes. 
31-156- Foundations of AI Technical Diploma – Jason Schenzel: The four new courses: AI Fundamentals, Business 
Applications of AI, Ethics of AI, and Foundations of Data Engineering Course will be able to be taken collectively to earn a 
Foundations of AI technical diploma, which is will also be embedded in the Data Analytics associates degree. 

• The committee members approved these changes. 

 
 

Enrollment Updates: 
Jason Schenzel: Shared and discussed the below enrollment numbers with the committee. 

 
Industry Discussion   

Remote Work Trends 
Jason Schenzel: Asked if organizations still allow remote work and whether students should be taught remote work tools 
like Teams or Zoom to prepare for the field. 
Eric Buhrow: Strongly supports remote work; most developers are fully remote at Skyward, while IT staff come in for 
onsite server-related tasks. Emphasized the importance of using Teams for collaboration, regardless of work location as 
students will likely need to meet with clients who are remote or located elsewhere. He also mentioned a current hiring 
freeze at Skyward but anticipates a rise in job postings soon. 

16/81



 
Jacob Hale: Allows remote work but not daily due to client-facing needs. 
Matt Hildebrandt: Operates in a hybrid model since before COVID-19, with most work now being remote. 
Matt Hall: General office work allows remote flexibility, but IT, including the help desk, is fully remote. 
 
AI Adoption and Industry Tools 
Jacob Hale: They are developing their own AI tools for reporting and collaborating with Amazon on these initiatives. He 
has observed increased spending on cloud migrations, 365 upgrades, and infrastructure updates, particularly in 
manufacturing.  
Matt Hall: Shared updates on Microsoft 365 migrations and automation projects. Mentioned Greenheck’s cautious 
exploration of AI tools like Copilot and the need for corporate policies on AI use. 
Eric Buhrow: Security around AI is an emerging topic in companies. Skyward developers use a restricted version of Copilot, 
reflecting a broader shift toward AI development and API consumption over traditional web development. 
Matt Hildebrandt: Highlighted the importance of staying ahead with 365 migrations, given the upcoming "doomsday" in 
October. 
 
Curriculum Gaps and Changes 
Jacob Hale: Stressed that students need stronger foundational skills in subnetting, as many may be relying on Google 
during class but fail to retain knowledge for industry use. 
Matt Hildebrandt: Supports curriculum changes to address gaps, particularly in subnetting, which requires additional 
training in the field. Acknowledged the solid foundation provided by NTC but noted the need for continual learning in 
industry. 
Eric Buhrow: Supports curriculum changes and stressed the growing importance of API development as companies move 
away from traditional web development. 
Josh Kretzschmar: Networking classes do currently emphasize subnetting, and it is also covered in the Capstone course. 

Next meeting schedule & agenda items discussion 

The next meeting will be NTC’s college-wide Advisory Committee Summit on Wednesday, April 16, 2025, 7:30am-11:30am 

17/81



2024 Fall Radiography Advisory Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Date: December 05, 2024;  
Time: 1:30 pm-3:00 pm  
Location:  4011 & Zoom 

Zoom Meeting Link: https://ntc.zoom.us/j/81744009853 

Attendees 
   

Industry Members:  
• Valerie Alft- Supervisor, Aspirus Merrill Hospital 
• Dana Buttke- Clinical Instructor, Marshfield Clinic Marshfield (NTC Adjunct) 
• Jessie Denny-Mabie- Staff Technologist, Aspirus Medford Hospital (NTC Adjunct) 
• Kelly Kremer- Radiology Supervisor, Aspirus ZOOM 
• Becky Nichols- Manager Imaging Services, Aspirus Medford Hospital ZOOM 
• Tracy Rekowski- Supervisor, Diagnostic Imaging, Aspirus ZOOM 
• Marlene Roberts- Education Division Administrator, MCHS ZOOM  
• Staci Zdroik- Radiology Team Lead, Aspirus Stevens Point ZOOM 

 
NTC Team:  

• Laura Ahonen- Associate Dean, Allied Health and Human Services 
• Chelsey Kleinschmidt- Learning Coordinator, Health Sciences and Community Services 
• Jordyn Olson- Student Success Advisor 
• Amber Schuck- Program Director, Radiography 
• Sandie Shorey – Administrative Assistant, Health Sciences & Academic Excellence 
• Amy Stephens- Faculty, Radiography 

 
Students: 

• Brooke Nenahlo, NTC, Radiography Student 
• Marissa Pontzloff, NTC, Radiography Student 

 
Welcome Introductions  
 

Meeting called to order by Amber Schuck, Radiography Program Director, at 01:32pm. Amber welcomed 
everyone to the meeting and thanked them for attending. Everyone in attendance introduced themselves. 

Update and Highlights from Last Meeting 
Laura Ahonen, Associate Dean of Allied Health and Human Services, called for any changes to the minutes 
from the spring meeting (06.06.24). There were no changes made to the minutes from the spring meeting.  
 
College-Wide Initiatives  
A Power Point of College-Wide Initiatives was reviewed by Laura Ahonen, Associate Dean of Allied Health and 
Human Services. Laura discussed 2 new programs that started at NTC this fall: Respiratory Therapy (admitted 
13 students this fall) and Funeral Services (offered in partnership with MATC). Laura also shared an update on 
the Health Mobile Lab, and the Spring STEM Fest set to take place in April 2025. Additionally, she discussed 
University Transfer – Associate of Arts and Associate of Science degrees at NTC, which are intended to serve 
students with the intention of transferring to a four-year college or university.  

18/81



Students start at NTC and, after 2 years, have 100% guaranteed transfer (after 2 years) to a four-year college 
or university. Laura also spoke to the group about the Community Safety Simulation Center, a stop the threat 
initiative that is a partnership with Pennsylvania School Safety Institute-PennSSI (sponsored by Church Mutual) 
set to open in Summer 2025, in addition to reviewing Student Support resources available, including Health 
Services via Telehealth. 
 

Workforce Training and Professional Development  
Laura also gave an update on happenings in Workforce Training in Professional Development. Flyers will be 
sent out with the meeting minutes on the current community offerings in this area of NTC. 
 
To access this information, please visit www. ntc.edu, select “Workforce Training & Professional Development” from the top of the page. Flyers will 
be included in post meeting e-mail. 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Spring 2025 Advisory Committee Summit 
This spring NTC is hosting an exciting opportunity for advisory committee members to gather together from 
throughout the college for a Summit. Please mark your calendars and plan to attend.  

o April 16th. 2025; 7:30am-11:30am 
 Networking & Breakfast 
 Learning at NTC- Followed by Choice of 3 Tour Options 

 

19/81



Industry Trends 
• New CT scanners at Aspirus St Michaels Hospital 

o More PET scans to the schedule 
o Need RT Assistants, but no current openings for Radiography Techs 
o Travelers continue to decrease-could be done with these contracts soon 

• New Equipment 
o Aspirus St Michaels is going live with their new CT scanners 
o New DR System and portable at Aspirus Medford 
o Reducing travelers and hiring more x-ray techs across the region 
o Aspirus Inc is investing $40 million in Aspirus Merrill Hospital, with a good chunk going to Rad 

areas 
 CT scanner 
 New x-ray rooms 
 C-Arm 
 Mammography 
 Maybe bone density 

• Job Postings 
o Various openings throughout the region, with NTC students actively applying for these openings 

• Student Progress 
o Positive student feedback 
o Grads are doing very well 
o Will open up positions once graduation nears 

 
Program Updates 
Faculty shared the following Program Updates:     

• Enrollment Report 
o 51 Students (1st and 2nd year combined) 
o More Clinical Preceptors added due to the number of students  

 Survey was put in Canvas Course shell 
 19-20 responses thus far (Please respond if you haven’t already!) 

o Scheduling for clinicals is challenging at times with this number of students 
o Most clinical sites are full to capacity 
o Trying to go more digital regarding access to schedules, etc. 

• Program Information 
• Program Recruitment/K-12 Events 

o K-12 Preview Day 
 Oct 29, 2024 
 Over 700 Students and guests 
 Mostly high school students 

o Community Open Houses 
 Nov 06, 2024 was the fall open house 
 Please help spread the word on these and help direct community members to attend 

these! 
• Program Modifications Discussion 

o New for Fall 2025! 
o Admissions Process will be changing: 

20/81



 Priority for all students will be: 
• 70 or higher on HESI 
• In-district 
• Wait list is based on priority (new for Fall 2025) 

 
Program Modifications 

Shared Program Update (MSTC) 

 Current admissions requirements: 
• Apply and be accepted to NTC       
• Declare a major (Radiography)   
• Must be 18 or older prior to September 15 (this is due to Radiation Protection in 

the state of WI) and have a clean criminal background check.  
• Take Pre-Declaration Radiography course 
• Take HESI exam in spring (must score 70% or better to be considered) 

 Admissions Priority 
• 30 student cohort capacity 
• In-district and earliest declaration dates taken first. 

 5 students reserved for MSTC students 
o Class Representatives 

 Both students are at Aspirus Wausau 
 Double the rooms that used to be in the hospital 
 Clinicals M,W,F; Class T and Th; 2 Saturdays a semester 
 1 has accepted a position; one has not yet applied 

 
Facilities and Equipment 

• Minor Equipment Purchases  
• Leg stabilizer 
• Sponges 
• Dosimeters to measure radiation 

• Replace Fluoro room  
o ETA July-August 2025 
o Venders will “bid” on a private website just for this purpose in June 

• Phillips, GE, and Siemens 
• Bids are currently being solicited 

o Selection made by the college with input from Health Sciences Deans and Radiography faculty 
• Important considerations (not in order) 

o Price 
o Service timeframes 
o Cost 
o Features & benefits 
o Long-term viability 

 
 
 
 

21/81



Other 
• ARRT Test Scores 

* Our test scores are fairly steady 
* 24 students that took the exam this summer;   
   the average was 84% 
* 1 failure on the boards this summer (only the 6th  
   failure in 30 years) 
* the program is changing mock board test  
   recommendations; if a student scores less than 75, the  
   student redoes the mock test. 
 

 
*indicates the pass rate (not the score) for all students in WTCS 

 

• JCERT Program Goals 
o Student will demonstrate professionalism 
o Student will demonstrate communication skills 
o Student will demonstrate critical thinking 
o Student will demonstrate entry-level radiographer clinical competence 
o Graduates will be satisfied, ARRT successful & meet the needs of employers and the 

community (consider dropping the word “community”) 
 Amber said there is no tool to measure meeting community needs and asked the 

Advisory Committee to consider dropping that word from the goal. 
 There are grad surveys but they are linked to the whole department and it is not specific 

to the students 
 Advisory Committee gave their support to drop the word “community” from this goal. 

Note: NTC Radiography Program is well above our JRCERT recommended benchmarks. 

• Student/Tech Assistant Scheduling 
o Don’t allow them to have hours at the same time since they (Tech Assistant) should not be 

interfering  
o This is an issue when the Tech Assistant is not a student (can stock shelves or go to CT)  
o Conflict of interest when the Rad student is a second-year student and they are scheduled at 

the same time as the student 
o Our current students actually feel it is a positive to have the Tech Assistants there 
o Amber discussed the fact that so much of the teaching really does happen at clinicals 

22/81



Next Meeting 
The date for the 2025 spring meeting is Wednesday, April 16, 2025 
from 7:30am-11:30am. Meeting adjourned at 2:31pm. 
 

23/81



  
 

 

University Transfer (UT) Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes  
 

Date: Friday, December 6, 2024 
Time: 9:30 a.m. – 11:00 a.m. 

Location: E101 & E102 
 

Attendees 
Industry Members: 
• Abby Behnke, 7-12 Counselor, Bowler School District 
• Brooke Davis, School Counselor, DCE School District 
• Carol Pond, Grants & Outcomes Director, Boys & Girls Club 

of the Wausau Area 
• Cathy Gauger, Career Center Coordinator, Wausau School 

District 
• Chrisie Wright, Counselor, Colby School District 
• Gina Struble, School Counselor, Mosinee School District 
• Heather Gallenberg, School Counselor, Wausau School 

District 
• Heidi Schmidt, School Counselor, Wausau School District 
• Jason Beal, School Counselor, Wausau School District 
• Jennifer Aune, School Counselor, Marathon School District 
• Jennifer Rauscher, Executive Director, Intelligent Future 

Foundation 
• Jessica Mehl, Student Development Director, Faith 

Christian Academy  
• Joe Kelter, School Counselor, Wausau School District 
• Josh Zalewski, CTE Coordinator, FAB Lab Director, Merrill 

School District 
• Kathleen Alexander, Principal, Medford School District 
• Katie Gilles, School Counselor, Wausau School District 
• Kay Pickar, Career Center Coordinator, Wausau School 

District 
• Kaylee Olund, High School Counselor, Edgar School District 
• KC Alft, School Counselor, Wausau School District 
• Kristine Federwitz, District STC Coordinator, Edgar School 

District 
• Lori Huther, School Counselor, Abbotsford School District 

• Maiya McSorley, K-12 School Counselor, Loyal School 
District 

• Michelle Murkowski, Business Education Teacher/YA 
Coordinator, Athens School District 

• Michelle Rhodes, MS/HS School Counselor, Rib Lake 
School District 

• Nick Boulanger, School Counselor, Wausau School 
District 

• Nicole Kloth-den Otter, F/CE Educator & YA/STW 
Coordinator, Abbotsford School District 

• Nicole Melander, School Counselor, Wausau School 
District 

• Olivia Dreger, School Counselor, Wausau School District 
• Roxie Brecke, Counselor, DC Everest School District 
• Ryan Winkler, Business Education/School to Career, 

Marathon School District 
• Ryan Winkler, School to Career Coordinator/Business 

Education, Marathon School District 
• Sarah Baltus, School Counselor, Stratford School District 
• Stephanie Gruber, School Counselor, Wittenberg-

Birnamwood School District 
• Taryn Fuller, YA Coordinator, Wausau School District 
• Taylor Wilkowski, School Counselor, Wausau School 

District 
• Teresa Pederson, School Counselor, DCE School District 
• Teri Sether, School Counselor, Wausau School District 
• Tina Vannatter, JAG Career Specialist, Wausau School 

District 
• Valerie Brooks, CTEC, CESA 8 and 9

NTC Team: 
• Brooke Schindler, Dean, School of General Studies 
• Dan McRoberts, Faculty, Communication  
• Hannah Lee, Administrative Assistant, School of General 

Studies 
• Julia Barwick, Specialist, Student Services & K12 
• Libby Heidmann, Adjunct Faculty, Advising Supervisor  

 

• Sara Bartelt, Associate Dean, School of General Studies 
• Sarah Watson, Faculty, Social Sciences/ Economics 
• Tracy Ravn, Director, K-12 Relations 
• Tricia Smith, Faculty, Communication 
• Veronica Hope, Faculty, Welding 

 

Welcome & Introductions 
The Liberal Arts Transfer Advisory Committee was welcomed, followed by introductions of NTC team.  

 

24/81



  
 

 

Update and highlights from last Meeting (Fall 2023) 
The previous meeting minutes were reviewed from December 1, 2023.  

 
College-Wide Initiatives 

The NTC Fall 2024 presentation was reviewed individually. 
 

Instructional Area/Program 
A. Program Overview 

Brooke and Sara provided an overview of the University Transfer program, which offers a seamless 
pathway to transferring to a four-year college or university. These programs are designed to meet general 
education requirements across various disciplines while ensuring transfer eligibility to partner institutions. 
They also emphasize the development of critical thinking, creativity, collaboration, and a deeper 
understanding of diverse perspectives.  

 
Sara shared an update on enrollment, with 31 students in the Associate of Arts (AA) program and 35 in the 
Associate of Science (AS) program. She highlighted the three courses with the highest enrollment: Metal 
Fabrication in Art, Social Problems, and Tolerance and Inhumanity. Additionally, she noted that 14 new 
courses are currently available.  

 
1. Updates on New Agreements  

Tricia provided an update on current transfer agreements with institutions such as UW-Stevens Point, 
Green Bay, Oshkosh, and La Crosse, noting that students work with Academic Advisor Xang Lee to 
ensure they select courses that will successfully transfer. She explained that high school students who 
have taken dual credit or Start College Now classes may already have a significant number of credits 
and can use these agreements to better plan their academic pathways. This fall, the WTCS approved 
new transfer guidelines aimed at strengthening partnerships with four-year colleges, supporting the 
development of guided pathway programs. These programs align electives with general education 
courses, enabling students to enter a four-year college at the junior level while earning their AA or AS 
degree. NTC currently has a pathway with the Milwaukee School of Engineering for the technical and 
business management degree, and Tricia and Dan are working to establish pathways with UW-Madison 
Online and UW-Stout. 
 
Dan addressed a common question about the courses offered in the Liberal Arts program, sharing a list 
of available options, including Creative Writing, Intro to Literature, Intro to Philosophy, Principles of 
Sustainability, Comparative Politics, Native American History, Metal Fabrication in Art, and Intro to 
Children’s Literature. He noted that this not a full list, as additional courses are currently in 
development. 
 
Advisory members inquired whether the NTC website lists current course offerings for the Liberal Arts 
program. Sara clarified that the site is in the process of being updated to include this information. 
Another member asked how students should choose which program to apply for, given that other 

25/81



  
 

 
associate degree programs also have transfer agreements with four-year colleges. Tricia explained that 
the choice depends on the student’s goals, noting that those seeking a more specialized program might 
benefit from enrolling directly in that program rather than pursuing a Liberal Arts degree. 
 
An NTC graduate shared her experience while pursuing her bachelor’s degree, emphasizing that 
students can continue taking courses at NTC and transfer them to a four-year institution, offering 
significant cost savings and time efficiency. She also highlighted that earning an associate degree 
doesn’t end the connection with NTC, as many general education courses remain available and 
transferable. 

 
B. Liberal Arts Faculty Presentation 

1. Children’s Literature – Tricia shared details about her Children’s Literature course, which began last 
spring and aims to reconnect students with past literature while exploring new literary themes. The 
course provides a safe environment for students, particularly reluctant readers, to engage with familiar 
books like picture books and fairy tales, while also exploring the historical evolution of children’s 
literature, from oral storytelling traditions to the pairing of text and art in picture books. A unique 
feature of the class is the integration of art through platforms like Canva, where students create their 
own work alongside reading and writing papers on topics like literacy, diversity, and ideology. The 
course also delves into nonfiction and factual fiction, genres that tend to engage reluctant readers more 
effectively, and includes the study of graphic novels and contemporary realistic books to re-engage 
students with reading at higher levels. Students even work with ChatGPT to "fracture" fairy tales, 
reimagining them in contemporary or science fiction settings. Another key component is the portfolio 
students develop throughout the course, where they collect works from various genres and share their 
discoveries with the class, fostering a sense of community around literacy. Students are encouraged to 
share their learning with others, such as children or future classrooms, prompting deep reflection on 
how literature shapes literacy and learning, both past and present. 
 

2. Native American History – Libby introduced a new course she developed, Native American History, 
offered for the first time this fall semester. The course spans a broad timeline from the pre-Columbian 
era to the present, focusing on the continental United States (excluding Hawaii and Alaska for 
simplicity). Students engage with the material through written discussions, short essays, multiple-choice 
quizzes, mapping exercises, and Padlet posts, which include both individual and group tasks like creating 
timelines and reflecting on their learning. A significant component of the course is a research project, 
where students select, narrow down, and research a topic, create an annotated bibliography, and write 
a reflection paper. The course supplements the textbook with academic articles and videos, often 
integrating Wisconsin-related content to highlight local Native American tribes. Although guest speakers 
are not possible for the online format, Libby incorporates resources that allow Native people to share 
their stories directly. A key element of the course is encouraging students to reflect on who has been 
telling Native American history and whose perspectives are missing. Through assignments like Padlet 
posts, students engage with each other and reflect on new knowledge, aiming for a deeper, more 
accurate understanding of Native American history. 
 

26/81



  
 

 
3. Comparative Politics – Sarah provided an overview of a new Liberal Arts course, Comparative Politics, 

which compares political systems across regions such as Asia, the Americas, and Europe, using case 
studies to illustrate these systems. The course is structured into eight modules, covering topics like 
democracy, political culture, and the influence of factors such as ethnicity and social actions on 
government. Assessments include quizzes, Padlet discussions where students explore current news 
related to the countries studied, film reflections, and a final project titled "Conversations with Power." 
In this project, students use ChatGPT to simulate conversations with political leaders, asking questions, 
fact-checking responses, and critiquing them. Sarah encourages students to take the class to deepen 
their understanding of global politics and their own political systems, while also fostering success skills 
like integrity, embracing diversity, and critical thinking. 
 

4. Metal Fabrication in Arts – Veronica shared insights on the Metal Fabrication in Arts course, which is 
designed for students with little to no prior experience in metal fabrication. The hands-on course 
combines technical skills, such as using saws, lasers, and rollers, with artistic elements of metalwork. 
Early on, students are asked to bring an image that resonates with them, helping them connect their art 
with their creations. At the end of the semester, students revisit these images to evaluate how their 
designs align with their original inspirations. Veronica introduced a starter project that encourages 
collaboration and helps students gain confidence by using various machines and learning processes like 
welding and shaping. She also encourages students to consider the aesthetic aspects of their work, such 
as pattern repetition, light and shadow, and texture, as demonstrated in student projects like fire pits, 
tables, and moving sculptures. Veronica emphasized that no prior welding experience is needed, and 
she takes great joy in seeing her students discover their own artistic abilities in metalwork. 
 

C. Industry Trends 
Brooke asked advisory members to share their feedback on the following questions:  
1. For what reasons are your students choosing NTC’s University Transfer Program? 

Advisory members shared students are choosing NTC's University Transfer Program for several key 
reasons. Many appreciate its cost-effectiveness, particularly when paired with dual credit opportunities, 
as it allows them to save money on tuition and housing. The program's location close to home is another 
major factor, offering convenience and the ability to stay near family while pursuing a degree. For some, 
the familiarity with NTC from high school experiences and career coach interactions makes it a 
comfortable choice. Others value the program's flexibility, with options for online and in-person classes, 
and its ability to help them explore their interests while keeping future options open. 

 
2. For what reasons are your students hesitating to choose NTC’s University Transfer program over going 

directly to four-year universities? How can we help address these? 
Advisory members shared several reasons why students hesitate to choose NTC’s UT program over four-
year universities. A common concern is uncertainty around credit transfer, with students and advisors 
unsure about what will transfer or where to find clear information, despite tools like Transferology, 
which still have gaps in understanding or accessibility. The lack of a clear "university transfer" 
designation on applications further contributes to the confusion. Other factors include the appeal of 
traditional university experiences, such as dorm life, social opportunities, and the prestige of starting at 

27/81



  
 

 
a four-year institution. Some students also prefer to avoid multiple transitions and are influenced by 
peers attending universities. Additionally, there is uncertainty about changes at NTC, limited knowledge 
of the UT program's benefits, and the perception that dual credit courses already transfer easily to four-
year campuses. To address these concerns, improving communication about the program, clarifying the 
credit transfer process, and highlighting the unique advantages of NTC’s UT program could help alleviate 
hesitation. 
 

3. Are the specific resources (i.e., brochure, video, college partner information) that would make it easier 
for your students when comparing NTC’s University Transfer program to similar 4-year universities? 
Advisory members suggested several resources to make it easier for students to compare NTC’s UT 
program to similar 4-year universities. These include providing more information on credit 
transferability, the benefits of completing a degree without continuing, and a clearer explanation of the 
program’s value. Suggested resources include brochures (both virtual and in-person), videos, and college 
partner information, along with cost breakdowns for NTC and partner universities like UWSP Wausau. 
Additionally, degree planning sheets, more user-friendly materials, and clearer website information on 
class offerings and program details would help. Emphasis on the "guaranteed" transfer and clearer 
communication around the "university transfer" name, along with tours, school visits, and videos, were 
also recommended. Overall, providing handouts, flyers, and a breakdown of how many credits transfer 
per specific programs would assist both students and advisors in making informed decisions. 

Next meeting schedule & agenda items discussion 
The next fall meeting will tentatively be held Friday, December 5, 2025.  

 

28/81



 

 
 

Fall 2024 NTC Respiratory Therapy  
Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 

Date:  December 11, 2024 
Time: 3:30 pm – 5:00 pm 

Location: Hybrid of In-person (room 4011) and Zoom  
Link:  https://ntc.zoom.us/j/82370955526 

 

Attendees 
Industry Members: 

• Dana Decker- Northshore Health Services, VP ZOOM 
• Kristy Hicks- Aspirus Rhinelander Hospital and Howard Young Medical Center- Woodruff, Interim 

Supervisor for the Northern Region ZOOM 
• Dr. Kris Lahren- Aspirus Pulmonary & Critical Care, Physician  
• Heidi Obry- Aspirus Wausau Hospital, Director, Cardiopulmonary Services 
• Brian Otten- Greater Wausau Chamber of Commerce, Marketing Director 
• Alison Riedel- Marshfield Medical Center-Marshfield, Supervisor of Respiratory Therapy ZOOM  
• Marlene Roberts- Marshfield Clinic Health System, Education Division Administrator ZOOM 
• Mike Tracey- Aspirus Home Medical-Wausau, Director of Aspirus Home Medical Equipment 
• Lynn Waldera- Aspirus Divine Savior-Portage, Director of Respiratory Therapy,  ZOOM 
• David Warren- Aspirus Medford Hospital, Manager of Cardiopulmonary Services ZOOM 
• Cindy Williams- Marshfield Medical Center Weston, Lead Respiratory Therapist ZOOM 
 

NTC Team: 
• Stephanie Bessert- NTC, Associate Dean of Nursing  
• Laura Litzer- NTC, Student Success Advisor 
• Eric Nelson- NTC, Respiratory Therapy Program Director 
• Ben Olson- NTC, Respiratory Therapy Director of Clinical Education & Faculty  
• Angela Roesler- NTC, Dean of Health Sciences and Community Services 
• Sandie Shorey- NTC, Administrative Assistant Health Sciences and Academic Excellence 

 
Students: 

• Diana Bryant, NTC Respiratory Therapy Student 
• Madison Cerven, NTC Respiratory Therapy Student 
• McKenna Meunier, NTC Respiratory Therapy Student 

 

Welcome & Introductions 
 
Stephanie Bessert, Associate Dean of Nursing, welcomed everyone to the meeting and thanked them for 
attending. Everyone in attendance introduced themselves and which industry partner they represent. 
 

29/81



 

 

Update and Highlights from Spring 2024 Advisory Committee Meeting 
Eric Nelson, Respiratory Therapy Program Director, reviewed updates and highlights from the Spring 2024 
(02.13.24) RT Advisory Committee Meeting.  Eric called for any changes to the 02.13.24 meeting minutes. 
No changes were recommended. Motion to approve the minutes was made by Eric Nelson and seconded by 
Ben Olson. Motion carried. 
 

College-Wide Initiatives 
A Power Point of College-Wide Initiatives was reviewed by Dr. Angela Roesler Dean of Health Sciences and 
Community Services. She discussed 2 new programs that started at NTC this fall: Respiratory Therapy 
(admitted 13 students this fall) and Funeral Services (offered in partnership with MATC). She also shared an 
update on the Health Mobile Lab and the Spring STEM Fest set to take place in April 2025. Additionally, 
Angela discussed University Transfer – Associate of Arts and Associate of Science degrees at NTC, which are 
intended to serve students with the intention of transferring to a four-year college or university. Students 
start at NTC and, after 2 years, have guaranteed transfer to a four-year college or university. Laura also 
spoke to the group about the Community Safety Simulation Center, a stop the threat initiative that is a 
partnership with Pennsylvania School Safety Institute-PennSSI (sponsored by Church Mutual), in addition to 
reviewing Student Support resources available, including Health Services via Telehealth. 

 

*Please reach out to Program Director (Eric Nelson) or 
Associate Dean of Nursing (Stephanie Bessert) if you 
have a student at your clinical site that you feel needs 
assistance. 
*There will be some RT specific scholarships coming-
watch for this, as this money is dedicated to this 
program1 

Workforce Training and Professional Development Initiatives 
There was also an update given by Angela Roesler, Dean of Health Sciences and Community Services, on 
happenings in Workforce Training in Professional Development. Flyers will be sent out with the meeting 
minutes on the current community offerings in this area of NTC. 

30/81



 

 
To access this information, please visit www. ntc.edu, select “Workforce Training & Professional Development” from 
the top of the page. Flyers will be included in post meeting e-mail. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To access this information, please visit www.ntc.edu, select “Workforce Training & Professional 
Development” from the top of the page.  On this page you will see various trainings and services that NTC, 
Brad Gast, Dean of Workforce Training and Professional Development, and his division are offering. The 
page now is divided into continuing education courses, life enrichment and community courses, and there 
is a section on apprenticeship offerings. Brad and his team’s focus on bringing the community on to the 
NTC campus, especially those who either haven’t been on campus before or for those who it has been 
many years since their last visit. The flyers for current offerings are attached to the meeting minutes. 
 

Program Updates 
I. Program Updates 

A. Enrollment Report  
i. Started with 13- 1 student withdrew from the program related to being 

overwhelmed with program courses and gen eds.  
ii. The wait list for fall currently has 23 students on it; some have their general 

education requirements done and some do not, as there are currently no pre 
requisites to enrolling in the program.  Encouraging students to complete some 
general education courses like General Anatomy and Physiology prior to entering 
the program has proven successful. Not all on the waitlist may be ready to enter in 
the fall (without their pre-requisites completed).  

iii. Out of the 12 current students, 1 student recently stopped participating in RT 
classes and their gen ed courses.  

iv. Considering admission criteria, currently it’s open enrollment, may consider GAP as 
a prerequisite.  All students on the waitlist are being encouraged to complete gen 
eds in the Spring 25 semester to be better prepared for program.  

B. Program Information 
i. Curriculum Review 

o Positive feedback for the Fall 24 semester, students are doing well and 
engaged in the classes.  Some minor updates are planned for the Spring 
2025 semester. Continue to work with Academic Excellence, Medical 
Director, and faculty reviewers for feedback. 
 

ii. Accreditation Update 
o Received provisional accreditation on July 12th 2024.   

31/81



 

 
o Currently tracking students and any required documentation for the next 

visit to become fully accredited.  
o The next accreditation would be in 3-5 years we apply for continuing 

accreditation. This will need to include graduate and employer survey data. 
As well as pass rates for the TMC exam and CSE exam.  

o To obtain continuing accreditation the program will go through another 
site visit process.  

C. Program Recruitment/Events 
• Spring K-12 Event 

o Medford Oct 11th with HS students was more successful-interest is 
high 

• Open House- November 6th 
o 700 students came through-very successful! 

D. Technical Standards 
i. During orientation, the technical standards are reviewed with students. Any 

students that may not be able to meet the technical standards are referred to the 
Center for Access and Accommodations. 
 

II. Program Modifications Discussion- None at this time 
 

III. Facilities/Equipment 

Equipment has been a combination of donations and purchases. Received a Drager from Drager 
as a donation along with flow sensors and expiratory block. Aspirus donated a 980 to the 
program as well; both of these machines are up and running.  

All of this equipment will prepare our students for clinicals and careers in industry. We are 
purchasing and training our students to equipment that they will see across our hospitals in the 
area.  

The various trainers we will continue to purchase will add to the experience while using the 
equipment. The ABG trainers and airway trainers that we have at NTC also help our students in 
gaining the experience and practice with skills prior to doing these skills on actual patients.  

Supplies are also being ordered and stocked as well as donated. These items are organized and 
will be adjusted by demand and experience after running through the courses.  

A. Capital Equipment 
i. Plan for grant purchases 

We are in the process of purchasing a Hamilton G5 and will be looking ahead at 
purchasing a T1.  

ii. Recent Purchases 
We have purchased and received a Vest and Volera machines, with vests and circuits 
to get started with; can adjust the rate- more realistic.  

32/81



 

 
The program has also obtained bronchial hygiene items. Glide scope- this helps to put 
artificial airways in. Has a very large screen, which is very helpful. We most recently 
received ABG training arms as well; those will be used right away in Spring semester. 
 

iii. Plan for grant purchases-no update was given  
 

B. Update on Equipment/trainers 
i. Alex- simulator that the program has been using 

ii. Super Tory- infant manikin 
iii. Michigan Instruments Lung simulators  

We are still going to be purchasing some table top lung simulation items. We have 
also started planning and looking into what other simulators are available for us that 
would help give our students a very life like experience in the classroom.  

C. Facilities 
i. RT Classroom 

In the RT classroom we have capabilities to show multiple items on the big screens in 
the front of the room. This could be as pictured from the Glidescope and a ventilator 
or side by side ventilators. It is just an HDMI plug to the wall. This is will be extremely 
helpful when explaining ventilator graphics, so everyone can see. This is also going to 
be helpful to show various anatomical landmarks for intubation for example. Alex The 
simulator) was also pictured, we have been using to help with check offs and to get 
our students familiar with working around patients, as well as doing the same in the 
sim center. There are also beds in the room, which will be helpful for 2nd semester 
and beyond. The program also obtained some large storage cabinets. 
 

ii. New Equipment 
Pictures were displayed of the new equipment, the SAM4 lung sound simulator.  

o This piece was chosen because students can use their own stethoscopes on 
the sim manikin rather than having to have another device attached or the 
sims stethoscope to hear lungs sounds.  

o Pictures were also shared of one of the new ABG arms. These we can 
control the pulse both in rate and pressure so students can practice radial 
and brachial arterial punctures.  

o The last two pieces shown in the photos were The Vest and Volera 
machines. These are used in airway clearance therapies and are pieces of 
equipment our students need to be comfortable using-for bronchial 
hygiene. 

o We have gas outlet items on order as well so we can have quick connects to 
interchange pieces of equipment quickly and realistically, as well as flow 
meters to do the same. 
 

IV. Course Progression/Plans 
A. Fall 2024 

i. Respiratory Therapeutics 1 

33/81



 

 
ii. Respiratory Survey 

 
B. Spring 2025  

i. Respiratory Pharmacology 
ii. Respiratory Disease 

iii. Respiratory Therapeutics 2 
iv. Respiratory/ Cardiac Physiology- a bit of a spin-off of A&P 

C. Clinical 
i. Summer 2025 

o Instructor led, onsite with students 
o Small sections 

ii. Fall 2025 and Spring 2026 
o Preceptor model 

a. Students will be paired with RT preceptors at the clinical sites 
b. 1 student per RT 
c. Preceptor education/training will be required  

i. question was asked if this training was the same as what 
CVTC provides. Ben and Eric will check into this 

d. Instructors will be checking in to monitor student progress and 
staff engagement 

e. Students will rotate through different clinical sites 
i. Hospital 

ii. Home care 
iii. Specialty Clinic 

iii. Planning Meeting 
o The program would like to have a planning meeting with clinical partners to 

further discuss clinical preceptor requirements. Plan for Spring 2025 
meeting. . . Perhaps following spring 2025 advisory board meeting?  

Industry Trends 
A. Current RT Openings 

a. MMC-Marshfield has two .6 FTE positions and three .9 FTE positions 
b. Aspirus Medford (Northwest part of the state)- more opportunities are coming 

down the pike 
i. There is a current opportunity at Stanley Hospital 

c. Aspirus Home Medical-  there is never a shortage of opportunities in the Home Care 
arena 

i. RTs have a huge impact on the RT care of patients outside of the hospital 
setting 

ii. This is a different side of healthcare-build long-term relationships with the 
patients 

d. Aspirus Wausau Hospital has plenty of openings/opportunities 
i. There is an overall excitement around the program and students in our 

communities 

34/81



 

 
ii. Once summer clinicals are completed, Aspirus will take interns. They will 

start in the fall and they will stay until graduation 
B. What’s going well in the industry? Feedback for potential students. 

a. System going back to the RT structure 
 

C. Opportunities for Collaboration- none were discussed during the meeting 
 

Other Items 
Student Perspective- Diana Bryant, Madison Cerven and McKenna Meunier were in attendance 
and shared the following insight from a student’s perspective: 

o What has been your favorite part of the program so far, and why? 
 Program thus far is going well; no complaints 
 Simulators are so helpful to learning prior to the students being able to enter 

clinicals 
o What has been the most challenging part of the program so far, and how have you been 

supported in overcoming those challenges? 
 Helps to minimize challenges when they have their pre-requisites done; can focus 

on RT specific coursework 
 It will be tougher as students move through the program 

 

Next Meeting Schedule & Agenda Items Discussion 

The date for the 2025 Spring Advisory Summit: Wednesday, April 16, 2025 from 7:30am-11:30am. 
Motion to adjourn was made by Eric Nelson and seconded by Ben Olson. Meeting adjourned at 
4:23pm. 

35/81



 Board of Trustees Upcoming Meetings + Events – 2024-2025  Updated: 1/15/25 

 
Date 

 
Event 

 

Tr
o

y 

B
ro

w
n

  

Sh
e

rr
y 

B
u

n
te

n
 

To
m

  
Fe

lc
h

 

R
e

n
ae

  
K

ri
n

gs
 

N
at

h
an

  

Le
h

m
an

 

C
h

ar
lie

  
P

au
ls

o
n

 

P
au

l  
P

ro
u

lx
 

H
ea

th
e

r 
R

e
n

ze
lm

an
n

 

R
ai

n
e

r 
Sh

o
o

te
r 

2024  

MONDAY July 8 Annual Organizational Meeting  X E X X X X X X  

July 23 RFSC Groundbreaking Ceremony X   X X X X X  

August 13 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting X X E X X X E E  

September 10 WTCS State Board Meeting (NTC) X X X  X  X   

September 10 WTCS State Board Dinner (Holiday Inn)   X  X  X   

September 11 WTCS State Board Meeting (NTC)   X X   X   

September 17 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting  
(9:00 a.m. start time) 

X X E X X X X X  

October 15 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting E X E X X X X X  

November 5 Board Retreat  X X X X X E X X  

November 20-22 WTC DBA Fall Meeting  
(Fox Valley Technical College, Appleton) 

   X   X   

December 3 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting  E X X X X E X X  

December 14 Graduation (10:00 a.m. @ The Grand Theater) X         

2025  

January 14 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting  X E X X E X E X  

January 15-16 WTC DBA Legislative Seminar | Capitol Day (Madison)    X      

January 17 ACCT Governance Leadership Institute (GLI) (Madison + 
Zoom) 
 

   X      

February 11 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting           

March 4 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting           

April 8 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting  
(Antigo Campus) 

         

April 10 WTCS Ambassador Banquet (Wisconsin Dells)          

36/81



April 11 DBA Trustees + Ambassadors Breakfast (Wisconsin 
Dells) 

         

May 6 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting           

May 17 Graduation (10:00 a.m. @ TBD)          

June 3 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting  
(Public Budget Hearing at 12:15 p.m. | Lunch at approx. 
12:30 p.m. | Regular Meeting at 1:00 p.m.)  

         

All Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meetings begin at 1:00 p.m. and are held on the Wausau Campus located at 1000 W. Campus Drive, Wausau, WI 54401 in Timberwolf 
Conference Center/Room D100 unless otherwise noted. 

 
 

37/81



y 
by Matthew Day

See Johnson, Page 13

r 
a 

A shock, yet 
validating

Jennifer Johnson recognized 
by Wausau chamber with 
ATHENA Leadership Award

MARATHON COUNTY – When imagining the 
winner of a leadership award, one may anticipate 
a business owner, CEO of an organization, director 
of a department or a manager who oversees a 
large team. 

At least, that’s what Jennifer Johnson said she 
would’ve imagined. 

Even when she found out she’d been nominated 
for the Greater Wausau Chamber of Commerce’s 
2024 ATHENA Leadership Award, Johnson said due 
to her position – senior corporate communications 

Wausau, Business News North Central

Jan
06

2025

Page
001
Clip

resized
84%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.38/81



www.TheBusinessNews.com

Johnson/‘Leadership is not just your job title’
being on your own.” 

Deciding to return to Wisconsin, Johnson 
said, resulted in meeting the man she would later 
marry, and the two opting to stay in Wausau. 

Putting down such roots, however, all but 
signaled the end of her broadcast news career, 
Johnson said, as growth in that industry typically 
requires relocation. 

She said she then decided to pivot into the 

its own way, bore resemblance to journalism. 
“It’s reporting, right? You take things... and 

make it so that everybody can understand,” 
Johnson said. “That’s still kind of what I’m 
doing every day.” 

Marketing and PR experience at various 
agencies, as well as Northcentral Technical 
College, she said, would eventually lead to a 
communications career at Church Mutual as she 
consistently pursued work inspired with a sense 
of purpose. 

“What has attracted me to the things I do, or 
the organizations I work for, is what they do and 
what they are at their core,” she said. “You look 
at Northcentral Technical College – it is helping 
people move up and step forward and advance 
their lives and their careers.”

The same, Johnson said, is true of her current 
employer, Church Mutual.

“We insure organizations that make a 

I realized that as I moved (between roles), but 
looking back, I think that’s what drew me to 
those types of organizations.” 

Johnson said the other common thread she’s 
recognized in retrospect is her appreciation for 
seeing others succeed. 

“That’s what makes me happy,” she said. “I 
like helping someone because to me, that’s what 
communications is. Whether it was journalism 
or now in my role, it’s helping with a piece of 
something and making it successful, whether 
it is championing others and helping them be 
successful, mentoring – those sorts of things.” 

 
‘Leading with empathy’

Johnson said her values are rooted in her 
working-class upbringing. 

“My father has a GED – he worked hard 
in a paper mill all his life,” she said. “As a 
professional with a college degree, there are 
things that I see now that might have been 
struggles for my parents. They hid it well 

specialist at Church Mutual Insurance 
Company, S.I. – she never considered she’d be 
selected for the award over the other nominees. 

“When I looked at (the nomination notice), 
they listed all the other nominees. I thought, 
‘Well, it sure was nice being nominated,’” she 
said of her expectations. “It’s funny – when we 
left our house to go to the (award ceremony) 
lunch and my husband said, ‘Let’s practice your 
Emmy faces... What’s your winning face?’ 
(I said,) ‘I don’t know – I’m not winning.’ I 
mean, CEOs and CFOs and executive directors 
– I was up against some people with some 
much heftier titles and implied leadership than 
myself.” 

Johnson said her role at Church Mutual 
is not that of a traditional “people leader,” 
adding, “I’ve really never been in a role where 
I’ve had direct reports or people that I directly 
manage.” 

The criteria for the international accolade, 

requisite duties.  
The ATHENA Leadership Award – which, 

according to athenainternational.org, was 
named in honor of the wise, courageous and 
resourceful Olympian goddess – is intended to 
recognize a person who: 

• Has achieved the highest level of 
professional excellence 

• Contributes time and energy to improve the 
quality of life for others in the community  

• Actively assists others, particularly women, 
in realizing their full leadership potential 

Considering her past accomplishments and 
her present efforts, Johnson said “when I start 
listing it all out, it does seem like a lot.” 

Still, she said, when she was announced as 
recipient of the award, it came as “an incredible 
surprise” – to the point where she hadn’t prepared 
an acceptance speech whatsoever. 

“I was shocked,” Johnson said. “I am great 
at promoting other people – I’m not fantastic at 
promoting myself.” 

 
Her way 

Johnson said she grew up in Tomahawk, 
graduated from Tomahawk High School and 
then earned her bachelor’s in journalism, with 
an emphasis in broadcast news, from Drake 
University in Des Moines, Iowa. 

From there, she said she moved to Joplin, 
Missouri to work as a reporter for the local 
NBC affiliate.  

“I like knowing what’s happening around me, 
and I always enjoyed that from the journalism 
aspect – and the relationships and meeting 
new people,” Johnson said of her early career 
ambitions. “I like letting other people know 
what’s going on, and helping them understand 
and see how what’s going on on the other side 

sharing those stories – those cool, unique things 
happening, and highlighting that.” 

Initially, Johnson said, living a good 12-hour 
drive from her family didn’t bother her.

“I’ve always been very independent, and my 
parents would probably still tell you that to this 
day,” she said. “(But) when you hit your mid-20s, 
you start to realize there’s more to life than just 

Jennifer Johnson

From Page 1

from,” she said. “That’s got to be (from) my 
parents – they must have done something right. 
They did a lot right.” 

Oddly enough, Johnson said her inspiration 
to give more was inspired by a time when she 
felt she had no more to give, as her and her 
husband’s careers, parental duties (for their 
three children) and voluntarism had her “burnt 
to a crisp.” 

“I was in the (Greater Wausau) Chamber 
(of Commerce)’s transformational leadership 
class, and the topic for the week, for the 
session, was passion,” she said. “We had to fill 
out this worksheet, and I remember looking at 
it and thinking, ‘passion – who’s got a passion? 
I don’t have time for passion. That takes time, 
and I can barely keep my head afloat right 
now.’ But I thought about it more, and I thought 
about the things that I’ve done and the things 
that I do, and what brings me joy and kind of 
fills my bucket – and it’s helping others.” 

 
Acceptance 

Though she was aware of the ATHENA 
Awards, Johnson said earning such recognition 
has never been a source of motivation for her. 

“I kind of like just hanging out in the 
background and celebrating other people,” she 
said. “It was actually one of my coworkers who 
nominated me – she didn’t tell me until after I 
won. I think other winners would likely say this, 
too, but I don’t feel like I’m doing anything all 
that special.” 

From encouraging her to reflect on her path 
through her career, service and life; to finding 
inspiration in her husband’s own exceptional 
efforts; to appreciating the way her supervisor, 
Dawn Bernatz, has pushed her outside of her 
comfort zone; Johnson said processing this 
award has been “a huge lesson for me.” 

“It’s kind of validation, right?” she said. 
“I think you get so deep in the things that 
you’re doing, whether they are for work or 
community service or personal – you get 
so deep in them that sometimes it’s hard to 
remember the difference you’re making. So 
it was validation that, you know what? I do 
a lot, and people recognize it. And it feels 
good, aside from – obviously, when they read 
my name – shock and thinking, ‘Oh, (no) – 
I didn’t prepare anything (for an acceptance 
speech).” 

Another major lesson from the process, 
Johnson said, has been learning how true 
leadership can be enacted and appreciated in 
any number of ways. 

The 2024 ATHENA Young Professional 
Leadership Award went to Lindsey Lewitzke, 
chair of the DC Everest Area Education 
Foundation, who Johnson said is likewise not a 
prototypical business leader, rather “a stay-at-
home mom right now, but she’s very involved 
in the community.” 

“It’s important for people to understand 
that leadership is not just your job title or your 
position. That’s something I’ve struggled 
with,” she said. “But there are ways to do 
it. No matter where you are in your career 
or your personal life, you can lead. You can 
influence others to make a difference.” 

Jennifer Johnson volunteers with Women 
United/United Way of Marathon County. 

from us as kids.”  
Her appreciation for others’ plights, Johnson 

said, has helped her cultivate a mindset of 
community service – a perspective which 
informs her work and voluntarism as well as her 
leadership style, which she calls “leading with 
empathy.” 

“I’ve got to go about leadership a little 

to do something. It’s helping people see their 
strengths and kind of point them in the right 
direction. You have to know the people you’re 
working with. You need to understand what’s 
happening with them in their lives, outside of 
that workday, to be able to lead them and help 

(tell someone to complete a task). You have to 
understand, accept and you have to have empathy. 
It helps them through all of that.”  

Johnson said for her, that sense of empathy has 
extended to a number of volunteer opportunities, 
with present service including: 

• Group advisor for Be Amazing, with Rib 
Mountain Elementary 

• Vice chair of Resource & Membership 
Development and co-chair of the Member 
Relations Committee for Women United, 
with United Way of Marathon County 

• 
Parent and Family Advisory Council, with 

• Member of the local football booster club 
“I want to treat others how I would want to 

be treated,” she said. “It seems silly when you 
put it so simply, but it’s important to me to 
teach my children that when we can, we give 
back, and if we can’t give back financially, we 
give back with our time and our energy.”

Johnson said it’s important to understand the 
whole person.

“I’m not really sure where that (value) came 

Wausau, Business News North Central

Jan
06

2025

Page
013
Clip

resized
34%

From
001

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.39/81



CWAIC helps region embrace 
the full power of AI

Pictured from left Dave Eckmann (CEO, Greater Wausau Chamber of Commerce), Jeannie 
Worden (president, NTC), Thomas Gibson (chancellor, UWSP), Katherine Frank (chancellor, 
UW-Stout) and Israel Squires, CEO and co-founder of Midpoint Consulting. 

Center is the intersection of innovation, collaboration and opportunity 
in preparing Central Wisconsin for an AI-driven future

NORTH CENTRAL WISCONSIN – Israel 
Squires, CEO and co-founder of Midpoint 
Consulting, said a recent McKinsey & 
Company survey on the state of artificial 
intelligence (AI) said it best: “If 2023 was the 
year the world discovered generative AI, 2024 
is the year organizations truly began using 
and deriving business value from the new 
technology.”

That said, Squires said it’s only a slice of the 
business populace that’s embracing AI.

And the even smaller sliver using it for two or 
more business functions, he said, is just that – a 
small percent – even as AI adoption is on the rise.

Squires said it’s an example of what businesses 
nationally are thinking: “I want to embrace AI, 

by Lori Kaye Lodes

See CWAIC, Page 4

Wausau, Business News North Central

Jan
06

2025

Page
001
Clip

resized
67%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.40/81



Jan. 6, 2025
www.TheBusinessNews.com

Jeannie Worden

but how do I do so responsibly, ethically and 
optimally?”

Providing tailored answers to that very 
question, and more, he said, is at the core of the 
Central Wisconsin AI Center (CWAIC), which 
launched Nov. 1, 2024.

Squires said the center is positioned as the 
intersection of innovation, collaboration and 
opportunity in preparing Central Wisconsin for 
an AI-driven future.

He said it taps into an abundance of AI 
expertise and application from Midpoint 
Consulting, a business consultancy with decades 
of AI experience; alongside three post-secondary 
educational institutions – Northcentral Technical 
College (NTC), the University of Wisconsin-Stout 
(UW-Stout) and the University of Wisconsin-
Stevens Point (UWSP) – and the Greater Wausau 
Chamber of Commerce, to tackle business 
opportunities and needs relative to AI adoption.

Squires said the center is expected to help 
hundreds of businesses in the region get started 
in their AI adoption journey and, in turn, train 
thousands of workers in the foundational building 
blocks of AI adoption.

Using proprietary, AI-driven assessments at 
the front end, Squires said the center then taps its 
partners to provide the right workforce training 
programs, industry-specific AI solutions, 
cutting-edge AI resources, personalized 
support and networking opportunities with 
others in the same shoes.

He said its primary goal is to provide the 
resources and support necessary to ignite AI 
growth in every sector of the Central Wisconsin 
region.

Center origins 
It’s a journey that Squires said has been two 

years in the making.
Midpoint Consulting, he said, started 

conversations with Greenheck Group and the 
Greater Wausau Chamber of Commerce about 
two years ago regarding the gaps in AI adoption 
and the resulting workforce training needed in 
response.

And simultaneously as businesses voiced a 
need for all things AI learning, he said the cry 
went out for higher education to address the AI 
knowledge gap.

All roads convened, Squires said, with the 
establishment of the membership-based CWAIC.

“(At Midpoint), we had the AI software, but 
we needed experts and business leadership in 

the region to come together with a mechanism to 
‘answer the call’ of meeting the market where it 
was,” he said. “I don’t know that there is anything 
like this center in the country.”

Squires said an increased number of Central 
Wisconsin businesses are realizing they need to 
invest in AI or risk losing market share – with 
many admitting they aren’t sure how to invest.

For those who are unsure, he said, the center 
delivers comprehensive learning on how to 
invest in AI.

He said it is a hub of both AI expertise and 
application with the tools and knowledge that 
businesses, students and the workforce need to 
thrive in the era of AI.

Prompting Techniques, Security and Compliance 
and AI Adoption for Businesses. 

What the numbers say
AI is an area of explosive growth – with 

Marketsandmarkets anticipating the market size 
to grow from an estimated $214 billion in revenue 
in 2024 to $1,339 billion by 2030.

Squires said he sees the opportunity for impact 
as two-fold.

First, the business’s training software will allow 

which will be data-driven decisions. 
“It starts with blocking and tackling work,” he 

said. “We know that 70% of workers in business, 
regardless of size, are using free ChatGPT and 
likely uploading company data or client data into 
open AI. This is not a good practice, and so the 

businesses not do that.”
Second, Squires said it helps businesses make 

investments in AI.
“What we’ve seen in the past few years is 

that even middle market companies have created 
chatbots and chased shiny things, versus taking a 
pragmatic approach (to AI),” he said. “We want to 
look at and prioritize use cases to determine how 

Squires said it’s about starting small and being 

“The imagery we use is that we will enable a 
company to ‘turn on the electricity’ – use AI – at 
some point,” he said.

Squires said the center’s services are the 

to center members on the front end.
He said that’s followed by AI training and 

upskilling for businesses and workers through 
in-person and online programs provided by the 
center, as well as its partners.

Squires said those are further complemented by 
the creation of innovative ecosystems within each 
business, identifying AI use cases, selecting the 
right AI tools and providing the necessary training.

Within three years, Squires said the center 
aims to engage with more than 100,000 workers 
and more than 300 businesses in the region 
through digital AI assessments, digital training, 
in-person training, in-person workshops, in-
person seminars and other programs.

And that, he said, is where any or all of the post-
secondary educational institution partners come in.

tools, we work with our educational partners to 
deliver that,” he said. “There’s that circular mission 
we’re trying to execute so that the institutions can 
answer the exact calls of business.”

The post-secondary educational institutions that 
stepped up to the plate as partners in the center, 

strengths, expertise and opportunities.

the center simultaneously, which NTC President 
Jeannie Worden said was a natural outgrowth of its 
existing initiatives, alignment with the college’s 

incorporate AI into curriculum.
“The work in AI really aligns with our strategic 

plan, and when the center became an opportunity, 
it just made sense to be a partner with it,” she said. 
“We are a leader in AI and a leader in the ecosystem 
to help our students and our employers.”

During her 29-year tenure at NTC, Worden said 
the closest thing she can liken to the opportunities 
and potential pitfalls of AI is the introduction of 
the internet.

“I think about AI in terms of how 
revolutionary the internet was, and I put AI in 
the same ballpark as that,” she said.

The educational institution’s embrace of 
the new technology, Worden said, can be seen 
in its faculty’s commitment to research and 
incorporation of AI into each curriculum as 
appropriate.

Worden said the college’s implementation 
plan is focused on three areas: having structure 
and resources in place to serve students 
pursuing associate degrees, businesses tapping 

further as an employer itself.
“We are working to make sure our students 

graduate with that leading-edge experience as they 
go out into the workforce,” she said. “It’s what our 
employers expect of us, and we are proud to train 
for what’s important to our community.”

In particular, Worden said NTC brings 
expertise in serving healthcare, agriculture and 
manufacturing industries, particularly of great 
interest to CWAIC. 

“We’re coming at it from all three areas 

technology to support it,” she said.
Worden said she credits long-standing, 

collaborative relationships with the chamber and 
their fellow higher educational institutions as 
being integral to the center’s ability to work.

“I don’t see them as competition – I see 
them as partners in ensuring we are training a 

CWAIC’s physical location is on the NTC 

space for both in-person and virtual learning for 
CWAIC members. 

“We’re excited to partner with UW-Stout and 
UWSP in building a culture of responsible AI 
use that drives productivity, sustainability and 
innovation in central Wisconsin,” she said.

Teachers lead the way
At UWSP – another of CWAIC’s educational 

partners – Jenny Resch, executive director of 
economic engagement and strategic partnerships, 

campus is with its School of Education and the 
K-12 teachers the program graduates and sends 
into schools nationwide.

“Our K-12 education program is phenomenal, a 
nationally known program, and we’re graduating 
teachers who are going to immediately engage in 
the AI landscape in their schools,” she said. “We 
acknowledge that if we’re going to advance the 
strengths of the Central Wisconsin workforce, 
employees – including teachers – need to show up 
with the tools, knowledge and resourcefulness to 
navigate the AI world.”

Resch said the same mindset applies throughout 
the campuses’ other programs, such as the Sentry 
School of Business’ adoption of AI for use with 

The university, she said, is walking the walk, 
guided by an AI implementation committee with 

from each others’ research and learnings.
In addition, Resch said faculty have access to 

the Center for Inclusive Teaching and Learning 
to help adapt and change coursework and the 
classroom in response to AI.

“For example, it includes recognizing students 
may integrate AI with assignments, using it to 
their advantage, but that requires us to advance 
the curriculum and evolve our teaching to enhance 
additional learning,” she said. “AI permeates 
every corner of the university.”

In addition, Resch said the university embraced 
AI by planning and hosting an AI conference 
for business and industry in early 2024 – which 
focused on manufacturing and health care – 
and will host its second annual AI Innovations 
Conference in February 2025.

See  CWAIC, Page 24

CWAIC/Aim to engage with more than 300 businesses in next three years
From Page 1

Jenny ReschIsrael Squires

Wausau, Business News North Central

Jan
06

2025

Page
004
Clip

resized
34%

From
001

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.41/81



Jan. 6, 2025
www.TheBusinessNews.com

CWAIC/Can further businesses’ ability to embrace AI
The 2025 conference, she said, will host 

industry tracks including education.
Resch said NTC is involved in helping to plan 

the 2025 event because of both geographic and 

an opportunity to highlight CWAIC’s work and 
the educational institutions’ strengths to train the 
workforce. 

Resch said the knowledge and training of 
CWAIC extends not only to graduates but 
businesses tapping into the university’s continuing 

UWSP frequently works with business and 
industry to customize specialized training, 
she said, whether it’s leadership development, 
wellness coaching or AI.

Resch said UWSP will answer the call to provide 
AI-focused training and professional development 
to businesses through the CWAIC.

“What we’ve been working on is now integrated 
into the work of the center, meeting organizations 

of integrating AI into their company,” she said. 
“Recognizing where they are – and not telling 
them where they need to be – is critical to the 
success of the center.”

university
UW-Stout’s participation as a partner in 

the CWAIC, Seth Hudson, executive director, 
corporate relations and economic engagement, 
said was an easy “yes” for the state’s only 
polytechnic university whose approach 
involves hands-on learning and strong working 
relationships with industry and community 
stakeholders.

“CWAIC allows us to further bring that 
approach to companies seeking AI resources and 
assistance, especially manufacturers,” he said.

Hudson said AI is something UW-Stout is 
embracing across campus – from having a 

being incorporated campuswide, to the AI Club 
which is fast approaching 50 members. 

“We are integrating AI mindfully into 
everything across campus,” he said. “We’re 
approaching it like when the internet came out. It’s 

and it’s important to have a common basis of 
understanding throughout all programming.”

Hudson said it’s also an integral part of the 
university’s existing work with small- and medium-
sized manufacturers – one of Wisconsin’s leading 
workforce sectors of more than 8,900 companies, 
employing more than 490,000 workers.

One of UW-Stout’s manufacturing center 

Intelligence (CAM-AI), which Hudson said was 
created to leverage the university’s expertise in 
solving technical issues and conducting research 
to support private industry. 

“That center’s role is to use faculty, graduate 
students and some undergraduate students to work 
with industry to address issues and challenges 

company, including advanced manufacturing and 
AI,” he said.

Hudson said CAM-AI is tied to UW-
Stout’s Manufacturing Outreach Center, one 

National Institute of Standards and Technology/
Manufacturing Extension Partnership.

Graf said he anticipates Greenheck will embrace 

• 
drafting communications, presentations and 
emails

• 
to more accurately plan labor and material 
requirements

• 
monitoring manufacturing equipment for 
potential failures before they occur

• Improving product design and model/predict 
the performance of the company’s fans for 

Collectively, Graf said applying AI will reduce 
redundant and/or repetitive tasks, freeing up time 
for more meaningful work at Greenheck.

“And that means better and more rewarding 
jobs,” she said.

Business case for AI advancement, training
Dave Eckmann, president and CEO of the 

Greater Wausau Chamber of Commerce, said of 
its 800 members, 450-500 are small- and medium-
sized enterprises.

Eckmann said their level of knowledge and 
integration of AI and innovation of all kinds can 

peers.
“The economic development plan we created 

a few years ago calls for action in placemaking, 
talent and innovation,” he said. “It all fits 
together, and there is a lot of work being 
done on placemaking and the talent pipeline 
in the community. But we needed to do more 
for innovation. That requires small, medium 
and large companies to access technology 
including (Industry) 5.0 technologies, and AI 
is part of that.”

Eckmann said a conversation with Squires 
about the importance of advancing technology 
and Industry 5.0 prompted work with business 
and industry partners to understand the current 
state of AI adoption.

Conversations, Eckmann said, revealed it was 
incumbent on the chamber to play a role.

“Our members need to always be looking at 
innovation and change to be more competitive in 
this changing economic environment,” he said.  

Eckmann said he recognizes that if North 
Central Wisconsin businesses don’t integrate AI 
and other innovations into their businesses, the 
competition will move ahead of them.

Supporting the center, he said, is well aligned 

comprehensive solutions through consulting, 
training and workforce development for 
manufacturers in particular.

Hudson said it leverages the university’s 
industry experience, tech savviness and teamwork 
to improve manufacturers’ processes, grow their 
businesses, enrich their people and develop 
products.

Together, he said the CAM-AI and UW-
Stout Manufacturing Outreach Center deliver 
consulting, training and workforce development 
for clientele.

Hudson said those two programs’ capabilities 
are now interwoven with CWAIC, both serving 
as a “feeder” to CWAIC, as well as drawing 
additional training opportunities to UW-Stout 
from businesses that start by knocking on 
CWAIC’s doors.

In doing so, Hudson said UW-Stout’s expertise 
in manufacturing and AI solutions and support 
can reach businesses beyond the 33 Northwest 
Wisconsin counties with which they typically 
work.

“Companies (in these UW-Stout programs) 

come through our centers where we can get an 
understanding of what they want to focus on,” he 
said. “If it’s AI, the collective group at (CWAIC) 
can look at the (intake survey) and say, ‘Here are 

how to use AI with Excel’ or ‘how to incorporate 
AI into an assembly line.’”

Hudson said it’s really a matter of synergy and 
compounding the impact any one of the entities 
can have for businesses seeking AI knowledge and 
training.

Depending on the needs revealed, Hudson said 
any one or more of the educational institutions 
(UW-Stout, UWSP and NTC) may step up to 
deliver training and education for a given CWAIC 
member.

“Any one of us could deliver the training 
depending on capacity, existing relationships and 

Hudson said he is excited to see what CWAIC’s 
intake survey reveals for companies they will work 
with, even manufacturers that have been working 
with any of UW-Stout’s programs for years. 

“It’s a great way to start and it will guide the 
entity or individual on where to go next (in their 
AI journey) based on data,” he said. “That intake 
process narrows the focus and provides a better 
understanding of what a business’s needs are and 
how we, across CWAIC, can collectively come 
back to them with solutions.”

Case in point: Greenheck Group

the company sees the CWAIC as a natural next step 
to its existing partnerships with higher education.

Graf said the HVAC equipment manufacturer 
sees many applicable opportunities for businesses 
and the community at large.

“We are only just beginning to engage in the AI 
Center, but see many applicable opportunities,” he 
said. “AI is already a vital tool in our personal lives 
– think of how you use Google, GPS, Amazon, 
etc. It has many similar opportunities in business, 
allowing us to access information, analyze data 
and make better decisions.”

with other, complementary work the chamber 
is doing toward embracing more of a culture of 
innovation. 

Eckmann said that includes work during the 
18 months to create a program called Powering 
Innovation, an innovation ecosystem, that will 
launch soon.

“When you look at Central Wisconsin, we 
don’t have that ecosystem here,” he said. “We 
are separated from Green Bay by 90 miles on 
one side, and Eau Claire and the Twin Cities on 
the other – sitting in the middle of Wisconsin 
and (we) don’t have the density of the Green 
Bay to Milwaukee corridor, Milwaukee to 
Madison or Madison to the Cities. We are 
isolated here, which is why we are creating our 
own innovation ecosystem.”

Eckmann said the ecosystem is built on three 
pillars: a digital toolbox, awareness built by 
bringing the toolbox into the region through 
content planning and storytelling of ecosystem 
partners’ successes and failures.

aspect of the chamber’s website redevelopment 
to showcase innovation resources and expertise 
as well as programming, all collected and 
presented in a single place. 

Eckmann said it’s well-timed as a complement 
to CWAIC, delivering small business resources 
for AI and further directing chamber members 
to CWAIC within the toolbox.

He said it also features a compilation of 
the services and resources from universities, 
technical colleges, small business development 
centers, innovation centers of excellence, funding 
sources and more.

Bringing all those together, Eckmann said, will 
allow the business community to easily access 
points of service “versus having to hunt down 
each service.”

“It’s a new digital resource and center of 
excellence to serve business, industry and 
entrepreneurs,” he said.

Pointing more businesses to CWAIC, 
Powering Innovation and the chamber, 
Eckmann said, can further businesses’ abilities 
to embrace the technology and innovation 
opportunities inherent in AI.

“At the heart of every business enterprise is its 
people – the workforce,” he said. “CWAIC will 
ensure companies and working professionals 
have access to AI tools that will allow for 
growth and prosperity.”

For further details on the CWAIC, visit 
centralwiaicenter.com.

From Page 4

Seth Hudson Dave Eckmann

Wausau, Business News North Central

Jan
06

2025

Page
024
Clip

resized
35%

From
001

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.42/81



www.TheBusinessNews.com

100 years and counting: Zelazoski Wood Products ready for the future

by Rich Palzewic

The family owned wood 
manufacturer is located 
at 839 9th Ave. in 
Antigo

Zelazoski Wood Products in Antigo recently celebrated 100 years in business. 
Zelazoski is a family owned specialty wood manufacturer. 

ANTIGO – One hundred years is a long time.
But if you ask Co-owner Ben Zelazoski, he’ll 

tell you he hopes Zelazoski Wood Products – 
the family owned specialty wood manufacturer 
located at 839 9th Ave. in Antigo – will be 
around for 100 more.

Though Ben, 74, said turning 100 as a 
company is a great honor and there has been a lot 
of company history, running a business for that 
long has also been challenging.

“We refer to ourselves as a custom job shop,” 
he said. “There has been a lot of good but also 
some down times – it’s been quite a ride.”

Ben said he attributes being around for 100 
years to his father.

“His foresight was to be better, not bigger,” he 
said. “So many people try to be big right away, 
and it’s all about growth. Though we certainly 
won’t turn down any growth, we’ve seen a big 
change in our product line over the years.”

 
Beginning operations in 1924

Ben said his grandfather, Thomas, worked for 
an Antigo company, named Mattef, that built 

a lot of potatoes being grown here.”
Ben said after that, his grandpa continued to 

branch out.
“There was a guy who wanted to know if we 

could make a handle for a curved wire scratch 
brush, so that’s when we got into the brush 
industry,” he said. “In the 1930s, we made 
crutches, and Grandpa sold those out of the 
backseat of his 1932 Oldsmobile – or whatever 
it was – during World War II.”

In the 1950s, Ben said Zelazoski started making 
cutlery racks for the West Bend Company.

“The cutlery was a gift traveling salesmen 
would give while going around selling their 
pots,” he said. “If they made a sale, then they 
had this cutlery they would give for a prize. One 
of their salesmen was from Antigo, and he came 
to us and wanted to know if we could design a 
rack where people could store these knives. We 
made those for quite some time.”

In the 1960s, Ben said Zelazoski began 
making parts for folding chairs.

“That was one of our busiest times,” he 
said. “People weren’t up scraping the paint off 
their house or sweeping their floors, they were 
sitting (in chairs) sucking down a Pabst or a 
Miller and enjoying the fruits of their labors – 
that worked out pretty well.”

Suick Lure Manufacturing in Antigo was 
next to reach out to Zelazoski, Ben said.

“We are still in the business of making 
fishing lures,” he said. “Several years ago, we 
were also approached by a company that was 
getting into the baseball bat business. They 
wanted to know if we could turn the bats for 
them, and then they found out we could finish 

others have since passed away.”
Over the years, Ben said Zelazoski has made 

“It’s kind of nuts,” he said. “We have several 
walls upstairs that have our samples on because 
it’s easier to look at a 3D item than picking up 
a blueprint and trying to read it. Quite frankly, 
all of the parts we make aren’t even up on the 
walls.”

Ben said Zelazoski is now making an animal 
grooming tool and still makes a good number of 
brush and broom blocks.

“We’re still a variety manufacturer,” he said. 
“We’ll make all sorts of things. We don’t really 
have a product that’s saleable directly to the 
public, but Fleet Farm and some other hardware 
stores used to sell brushes we made blocks 

overseas, so we don’t get much into that high 

 
A young start

Like many family owned businesses, Ben said 
he got started young, helping out his father and 
uncle.

He said when he was about 10, he began earning 
money for rides at the fair.

“I would nail potato crates together for 10 cents 
apiece,” he said. “Rides were only 25 cents, so it 
wasn’t bad. I started part-time legally when I was 
14. Back then, you could work for your parents 
in a manufacturing atmosphere as long as you 

weren’t around machinery.”

that we needed to be something other than in a 
woodworking business,” he said. “He wanted us 
to get a job that would actually pay something.”

“That was in 1968 when data processing 
was basically sorting punch cards,” he said. 
“I decided I didn’t like that, so I switched to 

Dad until something better came along – that 
was more than 50 years ago.”

 
A need for the future

Ben said currently, Zelazoski has 18 employees.
He said getting employees into the trades is 

“That’s one of the reasons the wood 
technologies class was started at Northcentral 
Technical College years ago,” he said. “We’ve 
hired two people from that. People don’t have 

job, so the enrollment isn’t as high as we would 
like it, but it’s doing okay. We’ve turned out a 
lot of good graduates who have gone into either 
sales, manufacturing or repairs – it’s been a 
really good program.”

Ben said the program “is very much needed” 
because, soon, many of Zelazoski’s long-time 
employees will begin to retire and will need to 
be replaced.

“The thing is, we’ve done such a good job 
of retaining our employees that we’ve got some 
who have been here 40 or 50 years,” he said. 
“They’re about ready to retire, so we will have 
all that knowledge going out the door. We’ve 
got to bring some people in to take their place.”

Being in his mid-70s, Ben said he’s thought 
about his future at Zelazoski as well.

“I’m already coming in for less time, but I 
remember my dad – who passed away at 89 – 
getting the mail for us in the morning,” he said. 
“Then he’d come here and shoot the breeze with 
us for a while and then go home and do whatever 
he wanted with Mom. He enjoyed coming to the 
plant and saying ‘hi’ to the guys and gals.”

Ben said that’s what he envisions for himself.
“It’s been part of my life for so long, so it’s kind 

of hard to just drop it and say, ‘I’m not coming in 
anymore,’” he said. “In the position I’m in, if I don’t 
want to come in, then I don’t have to. The plan is for 
my nephews, Brett and Andy, to take over and 
lead Zelazoski into the future.”

For more information on Zelazoski Wood 
Products, visit zwpi.com.

Over the years, Zelazoski Wood Products 
has made anything from cutlery racks to 

houses more than 100 years ago.
Tragedy at that business, Ben said, led to the 

beginnings of Zelazoski Wood Products.
“My grandpa built door frames, cabinets and 

about over with, so they decided not to rebuild.”
That’s when Ben said his grandpa took 

advantage of the situation.
“My grandpa had a wife, two kids and a 

mortgage he had to worry about,” he said. “He 
pretty much started up his own company doing 
the same thing he was doing for Mattef. Then he 
got into making potato crates because there were 

and imprint them and everything else. We were 
basically making the bats here and shipping 
them to whoever.”

Ben said making bats eventually went by the 
wayside.

“The cost of doing business with Major League 
Baseball was extreme,” he said. “The bat company 
couldn’t sell enough bats to make a good cash 

In 1958, Ben said his father, Clarence, and Uncle 
Bernard took over the business from Thomas.

And then in 1986, Ben said he and his brothers 
– Jim, Mike and Charlie – and cousins Tom and 
Joe became owners of the company. 

“Charlie and I remain active,” he said. “The 

Rhinelander-Oneida County 

RHINELANDER – Rhinelander-Oneida 
County Airport has announced new, nonstop 
seasonal service to Chicago O’Hare International 
Airport beginning May 22. 

Matthew Leitner, airport director, said 
United Express, operated by SkyWest Airlines, 

Northwoods region. 

seasonally through Sept. 28.

Business in Brief continued

He said each plane has a capacity of 50 
passengers for the approximately one-hour 

Keller to build for Marthaler 
Chevya, Good News Project

MINOCQUA/WAUSAU – Keller, Inc. 
has been chosen as the architect and general 
contractor/builder on a renovation project for 
Marthaler Chevy of Minocqua located at 
8240 US-51 S.

See Business in Brief, Page 28

From Page 9

Wausau, Business News North Central

Jan
06

2025

Page
010
Clip

resized
34%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.43/81



www.TheBusinessNews.com

A shining ‘Star’ of restoration and community philanthropy

by Rachel Kroeger

NorthStar Restoration 
Services raises nearly 
$64,000 for the Blue 
Hearts organization

NorthStar Restoration Services held the inaugural Jingle Ball Rock the Hall charity 
concert Dec. 22 to raise money for the Blue Hearts organization. 

WAUSAU – Jay Cricks – co-owner of 
NorthStar Restoration Services – said it 
sometimes feels like he and his business partner, 
Shawn Millikin, started the company so they 
could give back to their community.

NorthStar, Cricks said, provides a one-stop-
shop for restoration services and is known 
for being heavily involved in community 
philanthropy.

After sponsoring several events across the 
North Central region, Cricks said they found a 
disconnect between the money raised and the 
money donated.

raise money for (various) police entities,” he 
said. “We’ve done a Crime Stoppers event, 
and we did this event for the Marathon County 

We discovered that the majority of the money 
was going to the promotion company that 
was promoting the event, and not much of it 

Marathon County Benevolent.”
After that discovery, Cricks said he 

approached NorthStar’s VP of business 
development, Clay Rice, and asked if there was 
an event their company could personally host to 

Already hosting an annual charity golf outing 

Community Assistance Foundation, Cricks said 
he felt like they could do more.

“I thought, ‘You know what? We’re already 

the area.’”
Cricks said that’s when NorthStar found the 

Blue Hearts organization.

NorthStar + Blue Hearts
The Blue Hearts organization – according 

to bluehearts1274.org – raises money “to 

families, the community they live in, as well as 

nationwide.” 
Cricks said when NorthStar contacted Blue 

Hearts they discovered it was founded by the 
widow of Jason Weiland – an Everest Metro 
Police Detective who was killed in the line of 
duty while responding to an active shooting.

Kara Weiland, Cricks said, had been trying 

though she had held a few events, she didn’t 
have a major sponsor behind her to really help 

That’s when Cricks said NorthStar had the 

idea for the 2024 Jingle Ball Rock the Hall 
charity concert.

“We reached out to the Grand Theater in 
Wausau and inquired about renting the entire 
Grand Theater, bringing in a band and promoting 
(Blue Hearts),” he said. “They were on board, 
and ended up getting some other corporate 
sponsors on board.”

The Jingle Ball Rock the Hall event was held 
Dec. 22, and according to NorthStar’s Facebook 
page, the community event raised nearly 

Wisconsin, honoring the memory of Detective 
Jason Weiland and Blue Hearts.”

Cricks said the Mayor of Wausau, Doug 
Diny, also attended the event – making a 
mayoral proclamation declaring Dec. 22 as the 
city’s official Jingle Ball day in honor of the 
event and the Weiland family.

Beyond Blue Hearts
Aside from the Jingle Ball Rock the Hall event, 

Cricks said NorthStar is also involved in other 
forms of community philanthropy.

This year, he said, will be the 12th consecutive 
year of the aforementioned charity golf outing 

Assistance Foundation (WFCAF).
“It’s called the Restoring Kindness Open,” 

he said. “I came across these guys years ago. I 
saw their mission, what they were trying to do 
and it completely aligns with what we’re doing 
here at NorthStar.”

Cricks said the foundation – similarly to Blue 
Hearts – had held smaller events, raising a few 
thousand dollars before partnering with NorthStar.

“We hooked up with WFCAF, and we started 
the Restoring Kindness Open and it has been 
hugely successful,” he said. “We typically raise 
between $40,000 and $60,000 each year.”

missions it supports – one being its gift card 

gift cards to distribute to people in need while 
responding to emergency calls.

“For example,” he said, “if they show up at an 
elderly person’s home and this individual keeps 
falling in the bathroom, they can use the gift 
card program to put grab bars in the bathroom.”

Cricks said WFCAF also uses the money 
raised at the Restoring Kindness Outing to buy 
Thanksgiving meals and Christmas gifts for 
families in need, fund a scholarship program 

Northcentral Technical College and send families 

– something Cricks said the Weiland family 
received after Jason’s passing.

“They sent Kara on a dream vacation when 
the family (was) ready to start the healing 
process and take a step forward,” he said.

Another organization Cricks said NorthStar 
regularly supports is the American Red Cross – 

both it and the WFCAF.
“We give (WFCAF) some of the proceeds 

volunteer,” he said. “And then the Red Cross also 
shows up at our car show and they volunteer.”

The Red Cross helps those in need in many 

“near and dear” to NorthStar is its SAF (service 
to armed forces) program.

and homeless veterans and veteran families in 
the Central Wisconsin region,” he said. “We 

fresh socks, underwear, T-shirts – so it’s a car 
show but it’s also a big clothing drive as well.”

The car show is in its seventh year, Cricks 
said, having originally started in the NorthStar 
parking lot before quickly outgrowing the space.

“We reached out to Harley-Davidson down in 
Rothschild and said, ‘Hey, we’ve got this charity 
car show we do, (and) we were wondering if you 
guys would want to partner with us, and by the 
way, can we use your parking lot?’” he said.

Cricks said Harley-Davidson happily obliged 
their request.

He said Camping World has also joined as a 
major sponsor of the ever-growing charity event.

“It’s now (called) the Central Wisconsin 
Rod & Bike Show,” he said. “We’re hoping to 
make it one of the largest regional car shows in 
the area and use the power of gathering those 
people together for a good cause.”

Cricks said through its work as a full-service 
restoration business, when they process clothing, 
bedding “and things like that, we will launder it, 
repackage it and then get it out to the Red Cross.”

Cricks – who serves as a board member for the 
North Central Wisconsin Chapter of the Red Cross 
– said NorthStar also hosts its own blood drives.

“We do three blood drives in our facility a 
year,” he said. “About every 16-17 weeks, we’ve 
got a blood drive in our facility, and to date, we’ve 
collected 294 life-saving units of blood.”

Cricks said he and Millikin believe the good 
you give comes back around, and they want to 

Making a Difference

NorthStar Co-owner, Jay Cricks (right), said his VP of Business Development, Clay 
Rice (left), organized the Jingle Ball Rock the Hall event. 

See NorthStar, Page 17

Wausau, Business News North Central

Jan
06

2025

Page
015
Clip

resized
34%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.44/81



NorthStar/Company has multiple triple masters on staff
people are like a deer in the headlights… That’s 
where we like to step in, sort of hold their hand 
through the process and explain it from A to Z.”

Cricks said NorthStar will pack up all of a 
homeowner’s belongings and bring them to their 
facility for processing.

“We’ve got a climate-controlled warehouse, 
and we’ve got a complete contents processing 

it,” he said. “We barcode everything. Everything 
gets loaded up in big storage vaults, and then 
it goes into our back warehouse facility that’s 
(also) climate controlled… so everything’s 
taken care of.”

After their belongings are removed, Cricks 
said NorthStar will then consult the homeowner 
on the state of their house and what needs to be 
done to restore it.

“That’s when we would remove any of the 
burnt-up debris and start the drying process and 
the cleaning and the disinfecting of the home,” 

are called VOCs (volatile organic compounds), 

and be around.”
Because of the toxicity of the chemicals often 

a whole process of cleaning and restoring the 
integrity of the structure.”

restore the house to the homeowner’s liking.
“We are a general contractor,” he said. “We 

create fresh blueprints of the home. We lay 

serve as an example for their community.
“When they see NorthStar – hear the NorthStar 

name – we want people to know that it has a 
positive connotation to it,” he said.

More about NorthStar
Cricks said NorthStar is a catch-all restoration 

company that “makes the process easier,” with 
three separate entities doing “all the things” 
needed to restore a home: NorthStar Restoration 
Services, NorthStar Builds and NorthStar 
Contents Services.

with a soaking wet structure, burnt belongings and 
lots of questions as to what to do next.

“People get pretty stressed out when this 
happens,” he said. “You’ll have one company 
come in and maybe do the cleanup, and then 
another company comes in and takes your clothes, 
and then another company comes in and takes 
your electronics and cleans them, and then a third 
company would come in and collect your hard 
contents, and then another company is going to 
come in and give you some quotes on putting your 
roof on, and then you might have to have another 
company come in and give you a quote on the 
electrical or the plumbing.”

NorthStar, Cricks said, alleviates that stress 
by providing homeowners with a central 
resource to achieve all that needs to be done to 
make the house liveable again.

“You’re a homeowner, you’re not a general 
contractor,” he said. “Some people are very ‘roll-
up-their-sleeves’ and ‘I can handle it,’ (but) some 

From Page 15

virtual walk-through with the homeowner. We can 
help them pick out new colors, new furnishings. 
We handle basically the reconstruction process 
from beginning to end. So ultimately, we can 
clean everything from your socks and underwear 
to putting the shingles on your house.”

in the various steps of the restoration process 
through the Institute of Inspection, Cleaning and 

restoration services.

journeyman, and then you become a master,” 

and smoke restorer and then there’s a master 
textile restorer.”

Cricks said those who obtain all three master 

master.
“We have multiple triple masters here at 

NorthStar – that is extremely rare,” he said. “You 

typically, it’s one of the owners – and that’s usually 
it… We’ve got, I believe, three triple masters.”

NorthStar University
Determined to be “one of the more highly-

trained companies in the area,” Cricks said 

NorthStar started NorthStar University – which is 
focused on furthering the education of their own 
employees and those of other companies.

“We originally started that because we were 
looking for a space that we didn’t have to rent… 
We wanted to have our own space,” he said. 
“When we moved into our new building coming 
up on four years ago, we redesigned the layout. 
So we completely came in and renovated this 
building, and we made sure that we carved out 
a space that was large enough to seat 60-70 
people comfortably.”

That state-of-the-art space, Cricks said, has dual 
15-foot drop-down screens and fully integrated 
sound and projector systems.

“We can host continued education, not only 

companies and do training for them (as well),” 
he said. “We’ve been doing this for literally 10 
years – we’ve been hosting continued education 
for insurance agents.”

Cricks said in the restoration process, 
NorthStar employees work closely with 
insurance agents who also require continuing 
education (CE) credits.

NorthStar, he said, hosts “three really large 
CE days,” where insurance agents in the area 
can come in for “top-notch” instruction and live 
demonstrations.

Cricks said the space is further used to 
host NorthStar’s annual blood drives and as a 
community gathering space utilized by various 

See NorthStar, Page 28

Jan
06 2025 Page

017
Clip

resized
47%

From
015

Wausau, Business News North Central

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.45/81



www.TheBusinessNews.com

NorthStar/Started University to educate, give back
From Page 17

organizations in the Wausau area.

using the space two to three times a week, and 
sometimes even on the weekends, and we lend it 
out free of charge,” he said.

Recently, Cricks said his business partner 
came up with an idea called the “12 months 
of giving,” in which NorthStar will nominate 

“There’s a bucket that we put out with 
information, and if you’re using our room, we 

bucks in the bucket,” he said.
For the inaugural month of the program, 

Cricks said NorthStar selected a family whose 

accident on her bike.
“This (happened) right in the neighborhood 

that this family lives, and they absolutely could 
not bear to go past that spot (where) their little 
one was killed, and they did not have the means 
to just pick up and move,” he said. “So we saw 
their plea for help, and… we helped raise the 
funds to get that family packed up and moved.”

Cricks said the program looks to those who use 
their space to help those in need, and that NorthStar 
University can be used to not only “bring value 
to the people that are using it, but we can use it to 
bring value to those around us as well.”

20 years and counting
NorthStar, Cricks said, celebrated 20 years in 

business Jan. 1 between its Wausau and Green 
Bay locations.

The Green Bay location, Cricks said, is owned 
and operated by his original business partner – and 
older brother – Nick.

“Originally, we were NorthStar Cleaning and 
Restoration, and then on Jan. 1, 2012, myself 
and… Shawn created NorthStar Restoration 
Services,” he said.

Now after two decades in business, Cricks 
said the NorthStar team is looking forward to the 
continued years of restoration and community 
service that lie ahead.

NorthStar University’s classroom-like 
space seats 60-70 people. 

Jan
06 2025 Page

028
Clip

resized
48%

From
015

Wausau, Business News North Central

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.46/81



CONTRIBUTED

WAUSAU, Wis. — 
Aspirus and North Cen-
tral Technical Col-
lege (NTC) are working 
together to bring immer-
sive reality technology 
into healthcare educa-
tion. This partnership is 
giving students a chance 
to experience clini-
cal scenarios like never 
before, helping them feel 
more prepared for real-
world challenges.

NTC’s new Simula-
tion Center features an 
immersive room funded 
by the Health 4.0 grant. 
“With immersive real-
ity, we can create sce-
narios students might 
not encounter during 
traditional training,” 
said Reed Champagne, 
NTC’s Manager of Edu-
cation Technology. “We 
change the room’s back-
ground, add sounds, and 
even smells to mimic real 
clinical settings. It gives 
students a much deeper 
understanding than they 
would get from just sit-
ting in a classroom.”

Aspirus employees, 
like nursing student 
Aspen Gunnlaugsson, 
are already seeing the 
benefits. “The realistic 
structure is so like clin-
ical settings. It’s helped 
me feel more confident 
in my skills and ready 
for patient care,” Aspen 
shared. She also noted 
that the immersive tech-
nology made it easier to 
refresh her knowledge 
after taking time off, 
which prepared her for 
clinical rotations.

Aspirus 
and North 
Central 
College 
working 
to improve 
healthcare 
education

More EDUCATION   |   A2

Antigo Daily Journal

Jan
10

2025

Page
A01
Clip

resized
72%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.47/81



The immersive room also 
allows students to tackle com-
plex scenarios that they might 
not experience during their 
training. “We can’t guaran-
tee students will see every 
type of case in real life, but this 
technology helps fill those 
gaps,” Champagne explained. 
He added that by integrat-
ing sounds, visuals, and even 
smells, students are better pre-
pared to respond effectively to 
various situations when they 
enter the workforce.

This collaboration helps 

strengthen the community 
by ensuring future health-
care professionals are better 
trained to deliver high-qual-
ity care. Students gain more 
hands-on experience, which 
ultimately improves patient 
outcomes and ensures that 
local healthcare providers are 
ready to meet the needs of an 
ever-changing population. 
This partnership between 
Aspirus and NTC demon-
strates the power of combin-
ing innovation with educa-
tion to support both students 
and the communities they 
will serve.

Education/from A1

Jan
10 2025 Page

A02
Clip

resized
196%

From
A01

Antigo Daily Journal

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.48/81



CONTRIBUTED

MEDFORD — Ener-
quip’s Quality Control 
Specialist, Brandon Zie-
linski, has earned the 
highly regarded Cer-
tified Welding Inspec-
tor (CWI) certifica-
tion from the American 
Welding Society (AWS). 
The rigorous certifica-
tion process involves 
extensive online study, 
hands-on training, and 

comprehensive exams, 
covering welding codes, 
inspection meth-
ods, and quality 
control practices.

The AWS CWI 
certification is a 
globally recog-
nized benchmark 
for welding excel-
lence. It under-
scores Zielinski’s 
expertise in safeguarding 
the integrity and safety of 

critical components such 
as pressure vessels and 

heat exchangers. 
To qualify, candi-
dates must meet 
stringent educa-
tional and profes-
sional experience 
requirements, 
and by attaining 
this certification, 
Zielinski joins an 

elite group of welding 
inspection professionals 

known for their techni-
cal aptitude and dedica-
tion to safety.

“Brandon’s CWI certi-
fication is a testament to 
his commitment to pro-
fessional growth, qual-
ity, and safety,” said Jeff 
Dums, Quality Control 
Manager. “This mile-
stone not only highlights 
his personal achieve-
ment but also reflects 
Enerquip’s culture of 

continuous improve-
ment. We are proud of 
his accomplishment 
and look forward to his 
ongoing contributions to 
our success.”

Zielinski’s journey 
with Enerquip began in 
2005 after earning his 
welding degree from 
Northcentral Tech-
nical College. Since 
then, he has honed his 
skills across a range of 

roles, including weld-
ing, assembly, and ship-
ping/receiving. His pas-
sion for quality improve-
ment led him to the qual-
ity department in 2021, 
where he has become 
an essential member of 
the team. He now joins 
fellow Quality Control 
Managers Jeff Dums and 
Kenny Devilbiss in hold-
ing the prestigious CWI 
certification.

Antigo’s Brandon Zielinski earns CWI certification

Zielinski

Jan
10 2025 Page

A03
Clip

resized
84%

Antigo Daily Journal

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.49/81



1409 South Central Ave.
MARSHFIELD

Char-Broiled Hamburgers

PSYCHIC SOLUTIONS
BY AMANDA

1001 Division St., Stevens Point

715-587-5575

True Gifted Psychic 99% Accuracy
All readings are treated with complete

privacy and confidentiality

Astrology Readings/E.S.P.,
Psychic Readings

Tarot Cards, Palm Readings
Also available for Parties

& Special Events.

with coupon Expires 2/4/25

PSYCHIC
READING

$25

43
86

40

Advancing 
healthcare 

education through 
innovation

FOR CITY TIMES
M A R S H F I E L D - -

Aspirus and North 
Central Technical College 
are working together 
to bring immersive 
reality technology into 
healthcare education. 
This partnership is 
giving students a chance 
to experience clinical 
scenarios like never before, 
helping them feel more 
prepared for real-world 
challenges. 

NTC’s new Simulation 
Center features an 
immersive room funded 
by the Health 4.0 grant. 
“With immersive 
reality, we can create 
scenarios students might 
not encounter during 
traditional training,” said 
Reed Champagne, NTC’s 
Manager of  Education 
Technology. “We change 
the room’s background, 
add sounds, and even 
smells to mimic real 
clinical settings. It gives 
students a much deeper 
understanding than they 
would get from just sitting 

in a classroom.” 
Aspirus employees, like 

nursing student Aspen 
Gunnlaugsson, are already 
seeing the benefits. “The 
realistic structure is so like 
clinical settings. It’s helped 
me feel more confident 
in my skills and ready 
for patient care,” Aspen 
shared. She also noted that 
the immersive technology 
made it easier to refresh 
her knowledge after taking 
time off, which prepared 
her for clinical rotations. 

The immersive room 

also allows students to 
tackle complex scenarios 
that they might not 
experience during their 
training. “We can’t 
guarantee students will see 
every type of  case in real 
life, but this technology 
helps fill those gaps,” 
Champagne explained. He 
added that by integrating 
sounds, visuals, and even 
smells, students are better 
prepared to respond 
effectively to various 
situations when they enter 
the workforce. 

Marshfield Hub City Times

Jan
15

2025

Page
A15
Clip

resized
73%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.50/81



With a subscription to your  With a subscription to your 

Local Newspaper

Get in the Game
*when mailed in Clark & Marathon couties. $125 when mailed 
elsewhere in Wisconsin. $150 when mailed out-of-state.

  E-edition included with all subscriptions.

715-223-2342        www.centralwinews.comS
A

V
E

 1
9

%
 O

F
F

 T
H

E
 N

E
W

S
T

A
N

D
 

S
A

V
E

 1
9

%
 O

F
F

 T
H

E
 N

E
W

S
T

A
N

D
 

P
R

IC
E

P
R

IC
E

 W
IT

H
 A

 S
U

B
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

Subscriptions 
are only

$8585 
a year*

| In Print & Online 
| y| Subscribe Today & Save!

Edgar, The Record Review

Jan
15

2025

Page
009
Clip

resized
43%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.51/81



FOR THE WITTENBERG  
NORTHERNER
ASPIRUS HEALTH

Aspirus and North Central Technical 
College (NTC) are working together to 
bring immersive reality technology into 
healthcare education. This partnership 
is giving students a chance to experience 
clinical scenarios like never before, 
helping them feel more prepared for real-
world challenges.

NTC’s new Simulation Center features 
an immersive room funded by the Health 
4.0 grant. “With immersive reality, we 
can create scenarios students might not 
encounter during traditional training,” 
said Reed Champagne, NTC’s Manager 
of  Education Technology. “We change 
the room’s background, add sounds, 
and even smells to mimic real clinical 
settings. It gives students a much deeper 
understanding than they would get from 
just sitting in a classroom.” 

Aspirus employees, like nursing student 
Aspen Gunnlaugsson, are already seeing 
the benefits. “The realistic structure is so 
like clinical settings. It’s helped me feel 
more confident in my skills and ready 
for patient care,” Aspen shared. She also 

noted that the immersive technology made 
it easier to refresh her knowledge after 
taking time off, which prepared her for 
clinical rotations. 

The immersive room also allows 
students to tackle complex scenarios that 
they might not experience during their 
training. “We can’t guarantee students 
will see every type of  case in real life, 
but this technology helps fill those gaps,” 
Champagne explained. He added that by 
integrating sounds, visuals, and even 
smells, students are better prepared to 
respond effectively to various situations 
when they enter the workforce. 

This collaboration helps strengthen the 
community by ensuring future healthcare 
professionals are better trained to deliver 
high-quality care. Students gain more 
hands-on experience, which ultimately 
improves patient outcomes and ensures 
that local healthcare providers are ready 
to meet the needs of  an ever-changing 
population. This partnership between 
Aspirus and NTC demonstrates the power 
of  combining innovation with education to 
support both students and the communities 
they will serve.

Advancing Healthcare Education  
Through Innovation

Aspirus and NTC Collaborate to Improve Health care Education

40
52

85

Jan
16 2025 Page

007
Clip

resized
64%

Wittenberg Northerner

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.52/81



Merrill, Foto News

Jan
16

2025

Page
A002

Clip
resized

57%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.53/81



Merrill, Foto News

Jan
16

2025

Page
A011

Clip
resized
129%

From
A002

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.54/81



Wausau Times/Wednesday, January 15, 2025

ASPIRUS HEALTH
Aspirus and North 

Central Technical College 
(NTC) are working together 
to bring immersive reality 
technology into healthcare 
education. This partnership 
is giving students a chance to 
experience clinical scenarios 
like never before, helping 
them feel more prepared for 
real-world challenges.

NTC’s new Simulation 
Center features an 
immersive room funded by 
the Health 4.0 grant. “With 
immersive reality, we can 
create scenarios students 
might not encounter during 
traditional training,” said 
Reed Champagne, NTC’s 
Manager of  Education 
Technology. “We change 
the room’s background, add 
sounds, and even smells to 
mimic real clinical settings. 
It gives students a much 
deeper understanding than 
they would get from just 
sitting in a classroom.” 

Aspirus employees, like 
nursing student Aspen 

Gunnlaugsson, are already 
seeing the benefits. “The 
realistic structure is so like 
clinical settings. It’s helped 
me feel more confident 
in my skills and ready 
for patient care,” Aspen 
shared. She also noted that 
the immersive technology 
made it easier to refresh 
her knowledge after taking 
time off, which prepared 
her for clinical rotations. 

The immersive room also 
allows students to tackle 
complex scenarios that they 
might not experience during 
their training. “We can’t 
guarantee students will see 
every type of  case in real life, 
but this technology helps fill 
those gaps,” Champagne 
explained. He added that 
by integrating sounds, 
visuals, and even smells, 

students are better prepared 
to respond effectively to 
various situations when 
they enter the workforce. 

This collaboration helps 
strengthen the community 
by ensuring future 
healthcare professionals 
are better trained to 
deliver high-quality care. 
Students gain more hands-
on experience, which 
ultimately improves patient 
outcomes and ensures that 
local healthcare providers 
are ready to meet the 
needs of  an ever-changing 
population. This partnership 
between Aspirus and NTC 
demonstrates the power 
of  combining innovation 
with education to support 
both students and the 
communities they will 
serve.

Advancing Healthcare 
Education Through Innovation
Aspirus and NTC Collaborate to Improve Health care Education

Wausau Times

Jan
15

2025

Page
003
Clip

resized
93%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.55/81



Loyal, Tribune Record Gleaner

Jan
22

2025

Page
A001

Clip
resized

73%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.56/81



Loyal, Tribune Record Gleaner

Jan
22

2025

Page
A009

Clip
resized

44%

From
A001

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.57/81



Wednesday, January 22, 2025Page 10

Loyal, Tribune Record Gleaner

Jan
22

2025

Page
A010

Clip
resized

42%

From
A001

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.58/81



Abbotsford, Tribune-Phonograph

Jan
22

2025

Page
A012

Clip
resized
116%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.59/81



Medford, The Star News

Jan
23

2025

Page
B013

Clip
resized
128%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.60/81



Jan
23 2025 Page

A010
Clip

resized
57%

Merrill, Foto News

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.61/81



 6
 1

6
4

3
0

 0
6

6
0

0
 6

 Candidates for Thorp’s City Council and the School 
 District of Thorp’s Board of Education have filed for 
 placement on the April 1, 2025 election ballot. 

 Residents of Thorp will have several options for the 
 Board of Education, which includes incumbent Jason 
 Maier. Incumbent Kristy Sterling has moved out of the area 

 Candidates File For Local Offices On School Board, City Council In Spring Election

 Video games have been a part of Americana for over five 
 decades. From the early origins of Pong and the arcades of 
 the late 1970s and early 1980s, to in-home gaming consoles 
 like Nintendo, Sega, PlayStation and the X-Box that 
 dominated the 1990s and 2000s, generations have grown up 
 as gamers.

 The gaming industry is a multi-billion-dollar industry 
 that makes more money than Hollywood and thousands are 
 employed by the industry in the United States. Clubs across 
 the country are springing up to introduce a new generation 
 to online gaming. 

 Bryce Connor, a first-year social studies teacher at Thorp 
 High School, is proud to be the district’s Esports head 
 coach. Esports, short for ‘electronic sports’ is a term used to 
 describe organized, competitive game play. This can be 
 individuals or teams competing in leagues or tournaments 
 and is similar to traditional sports with prizes available for 
 top players.

 “Esports is an extracurricular organization that is run 
 through our after-school program,” Connor explains 
 enthusiastically. “It’s an exciting opportunity for a lot of 
 kids who aren’t typically in a lot of extracurriculars to be in 
 extracurriculars and to compete at a high level. The games 
 that we play are Mario Kart, Fortnite and Rocket League 
 right now.”

 In the state of Wisconsin, Esports is organized and run 

 School District Offers Exciting New Club With Esports 
 through the Wisconsin Esports High School Association 
 (WIHSEA). WIHSEA began in 2018 with less than 30 
 charter members but has exploded to include over 100 
 schools from every corner of the state.

 “The WIAA handles sports and there’s a different 
 organization called the WIHSEA,” Connor explains. “The 
 phonics for that would be ‘Wee-sa’ and they are the 
 organization that all Wisconsin teams fall under since 
 Esports is an activity and not under the athletics.”  

 Students from the School District of Thorp who wish to 
 compete in Esports are still held to the same high standards 
 as any WIAA student-athlete. This includes maintaining a 
 passing grade point average and abiding by a code of 
 conduct.

 “Since we are affiliated with the after-school program, 
 students with grades lower than 65% are forced to get their 
 grade up through homework help that is also part of the 
 after school program, Connor said. “This helps secure their 
 grades and secure their educational future. Esports serves 
 as an incentive to make sure they are passing all their 
 classes.” 

 Much like the WIAA, Esports is broken into divisions, 
 which is based on the number of students enrolled within a 
 high school. Thorp’s Esports team is Division 3 in Mario 
 Kart and Rocket League, but the Cardinals step up in class 
 during Fortnite and often compete against Division 1 and 

 Division 2 schools in Wisconsin.
 “Fortnite is kind of a unique one because that’s broken 

 up in time slots. We play varsity on Wednesdays at 5 pm,” 
 Connor explains. “We meet every day, and we compete in 
 several different competitions throughout the week. We 
 compete on Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Thursdays. On 
 Tuesdays the varsity plays Rocket League and on 
 Wednesdays we play varsity Mario Kart and Fortnite and 
 then on Thursdays we have JV Fortnite and Rocket 
 League.”

 Thorp’s Esports team currently has 16 members, and is a 
 co-ed activity. Esports is only available to high school 
 students, but Connor is hoping to branch out and add 
 middle school students in the future.

 Connor said because the program is in its first year, it 
 was important to prioritize high school team competition. 
 His focus is paying off as Thorp is ranked first in Division 
 3 in Mario Kart and fighting for the top spot in Fortnite. 
 These results are impressive, but don’t surprise Connor.

 “We have incredible players who are very skillful,” 
 Connor said. “Of course you’re happy they’re playing at 
 that high level, but when I first saw some of our guys 
 playing, I was amazed. We’re very proud of our team.”

 Games are conducted in a Two-versus-Two format – two 
 players going at each other at the same time. Like WIAA 
 sanctioned sports, there are state competitions for Esports, 
 with statewide events taking place at UW – Madison or 
 NTC in Wausau.

 Esports is not only gaining in popularity in high school 
 campuses across the state and country, it’s gaining 
 adherents at the collegiate level. Multiple institutions of 
 higher education even offer scholarships for Esports. 

 “WIHSEA has a college recruitment aspect to it,” 
 Connor noted. “The organization helps students get 
 recruited to Esports programs in college to give them 
 secondary education opportunities at a lower cost through 
 scholarship opportunities. So, there is a financial gain 
 students can make by playing Esports at a collegiate level.”

 Connor is quick to point out that the biggest benefit to 
 Esports is that students are not only doing better in class, 
 but the club is also helping break down stereotypes about 
 the gaming community and is fostering strong bonds of 
 community within the district.

 “Video games cut across all boundaries; we have star 
 athletes that you see on the football field scoring 
 touchdowns and sacking the quarterback and then they’re 
 playing Fortnite at a high-level week in and week out,” 
 Connor said. “So, not only is it breaking barriers of 
 traditional athletes versus non-athletes, you now have an 
 interconnected community where they are working together 
 for a common goal and that goal is to win for the school.”

 That’s not to say that there’s not a physical and mental 
 component to Esports. Esports requires quick decision 
 making, excellent hand-eye coordination, fast reaction time 
 and staying mentally focused. Connor says there’s even 
 real-world benefits to being involved in Esports.

 “Video games challenge reaction times and decision 
 making aid in both of those processes. Our players are 
 making split second decisions that can affect an outcome 
 positively or negatively. I read a research article when I 
 was in college that said that people who play video games 
 track movement twice as much as the average person. So, if 
 you really want to make an argument, we’re making safer 
 drivers by having an Esports program and better traditional 
 athletes.”

 Connor is not the only one singing the praises of Esports. 
 Those students who are involved in the club are enjoying 
 their time and discovering skills they never knew they had 
 – and that Esports has the potential to open new 
 opportunities.

 “I love being part of it. It’s great to play games with my 
 friends after school and get practice in for competitions,” 
 says Thorp High student Anton Kitchen. “We have a blast 
 after school, and I like that I can use this to grow my future 
 and that it could be a really great way to help pay for my 
 education. It would also be cool to be able to represent my 
 school at a higher level.”

 Connor hopes more students join, and he says he’s happy 
 to teach at a school district that supports an activity like 
 Esports. He says he is thrilled his players are putting Thorp 
 on the map in a positive way and is eager to see what 
 potential opportunities await his players.

 “I am thrilled, and I cannot be more excited for the future 
 and the opportunities it provides for students here at Thorp. 
 I have been so amazed that we have grown this much in 
 one year and the sky is limit.”

 Thorp High school sophomore Anton Kitchen, left, and Thorp High junior Roc Raether 
 take part in a recent Esports competition. Raether competes on Thorp’s varsity Fortnite team 
 while Anton plays varsity Mario Kart 8 and JV Fortnite. The School District of Thorp is 
 offering Esports for the first time this year as part of their after school program. The club is 
 co-ed and currently has 16 members.

 and is no longer eligible to run for the Board of Education. 
 Lana Ciolkosz, Kari Bielecki and Angela Hertz have all 
 filed papers to run for Board of Education this spring.

 Thorp’s City Council has three open seats with 
 incumbent Brian Abramczak running unopposed for Ward 
 3. Incumbent Joshua Rosemeyer is also running unopposed 

 for Ward 4. 
 Alderperson at Large Dave Korn is not 

 seeking reelection. Rodney Enkers is 
 seeking the open Alderperson at Large seat 
 vacated by Korn.

 The deadline to file papers has passed, but 
 voters will still have the option of voting for 
 write-in candidates. At the state level, there 
 will be a race for Supreme Court justice 
 between former Attorney General Brad 
 Schimel and Dane County Judge Susan 
 Crawford. Incumbent Justice Ann Walsh 
 Bradley is not running for reelection.

Thorp Courier

Jan
29

2025

Page
001
Clip

resized
52%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.62/81



 

 
 
The Lallemand Animal Nutrition Scholarship Committee awarded five scholarships to up-and-coming 
students and established scholars within agriculture. This is the tenth year the company awarded the 
scholarships, which reward students for their exceptional achievements and dedication to the field of 
agriculture. 

“We are proud to support the next generation of agricultural leaders,” says Jeff Ast, commercial director 
for Lallemand Animal Nutrition, North and South America. “This unique program seeks both 
undergraduate and graduate students because our judging panel recognizes that dedication to 
agriculture can be found at all educational levels.” 

The five students receiving scholarships are: 

* Mary Lewandowski, who is pursuing a bachelor’s degree in organizational leadership at the University 
of Wisconsin–Green Bay 

* Sydney Wyman, who is majoring in animal science at Morehead State University 

* Michael Starnes, a graduate student studying food safety at Texas Tech University 

* Grant Fincham, who is pursuing a doctoral degree at the University of Nebraska-Lincoln 

* Mikayla Schlosser, a dual-degree veterinary student at the University of Minnesota, pursuing both a 
doctorate in veterinary medicine and a doctorate in population medicine 

Students’ Future Goals 

Mary Lewandowski – Undergraduate student recipient Lewandowski hails from a sixth-generation, 50-
cow dairy farm in Bevent, Wisc. She recently graduated from Northcentral Technical College with 
associate degrees in agribusiness and dairy science. Lewandowski aspires to bridge the gap between 
consumers and agriculturists through a career in agricultural advocacy. 

63/81



Sydney Wyman – Undergraduate student recipient Wyman has been immersed in the livestock industry 
her entire life, growing up in a small town in the Sierra Nevada mountains. She plans to pursue a 
master’s degree in ruminant nutrition and eventually become a dairy nutritionist. 

Michael Starnes – Graduate student recipient Starnes already holds a bachelor’s degree from Texas 
A&M University and has interned with the National Farmers Union in Washington, D.C. With a long-term 
goal of working in food safety legislation, his current research at Texas Tech University focuses on 
Salmonella and E. coli mitigation strategies in beef and pork. 

Grant Fincham – Doctoral student recipient Fincham grew up on a 200-cow Holstein dairy farm in 
northeast Kansas. He holds a bachelor’s degree in animal science from Kansas State University and a 
master’s degree in ruminant nutrition from the University of Nebraska–Lincoln. Fincham is focusing on 
dairy cattle whole animal energy utilization in his doctoral program. 

Mikayla Schlosser – Veterinary medicine student recipient Schlosser’s passion for poultry production 
and commitment to global food security drive her studies and career aspirations in population medicine. 
She is deeply committed to advancing the sustainability and security of global food systems. 

For more information about Lallemand Animal Nutrition and the Lallemand Scholarship program, visit 
www.lallemandanimalnutrition.com. 
  

64/81



 
Advancing healthcare education through innovation 

 
Posted M onday, January 13, 2025 2:13 pm  

For City Tim es 

 
FOR CITY TIMES MARSHFIELD--Aspirus and North Central Technical College are working together to 
bring immersive reality technology into healthcare education. This partnership is giving students a 
chance to experience clinical scenarios like never before, helping them feel more prepared for real-
world challenges. 
 
NTC’s new Simulation Center features an immersive room funded by the Health 4.0 grant. “With 
immersive reality, we can create scenarios students might not encounter during traditional training,” 
said Reed Champagne, NTC’s Manager of Education Technology. “We change the room’s background, 
add sounds, and even smells to mimic real clinical settings. It gives students a much deeper 
understanding than they would get from just sitting in a classroom.” 
 
Aspirus employees, like nursing student Aspen Gunnlaugsson, are already seeing the benefits. “The 
realistic structure is so like clinical settings. It’s helped me feel more confident in my skills and ready for 
patient care,” Aspen shared. She also noted that the immersive technology made it easier to refresh her 
knowledge after taking time off, which prepared her for clinical rotations. 
 
The immersive room also allows students to tackle complex scenarios that they might not experience 
during their training. “We can’t guarantee students will see every type of case in real life, but this 
technology helps fill those gaps,” Champagne explained. He added that by integrating sounds, visuals, 
and even smells, students are better prepared to respond effectively to various situations when they 
enter the workforce. 
  

65/81



 

 

 
WAUSAU, Wis. (WKOW) -- Aspirus and North Central Technical College (NTC) are working to bring new 
technology into health care education. 
 
This partnership seeks to better prepare students for real-world challenges by immersing them in 
realistic clinical environments. 
 
Reed Champagne, NTC's Manager of Education Technology, emphasized the collaboration's impact on 
the community. 
 
"With immersive reality, we can create scenarios students might not encounter during traditional 
training," Champagne said. "We change the room's background, add sounds, and even smells to mimic 
real clinical settings. It gives students a much deeper understanding than they would get from just 
sitting in a classroom." 
 
According to Champagne, this hands-on experience will ultimately enhance patient outcomes and 
ensure local health care providers are equipped to meet the needs of a dynamic population. 

  

66/81



 

 

Students often face struggles outside of the classroom that inhibit their ability to learn and do well in 
school. Skye Mucha, Student Resource Coordinator at Northcentral Technical College (NTC) works to 
address those barriers with students.  

“They had seen that nonacademic barriers were a big factor in students not being able to continue 
school,” she said. “They brought me on to help students with those needs with the goal of helping to 
retain students semester to semester.”   

Nonacademic barriers are any obstacles students face outside of school that have a negative impact on 
their education. This can include basic needs like housing and food, finances, transportation, childcare, 
mental health and general healthcare.   

“It’s really anything you can think of that people have to worry about on a day-to-day basis that have 
nothing to do with school but can definitely get in the way of students being able to focus on school 
when they don’t know how they’re going to meet their needs,” Skye said.   

Skye’s job is to connect students with resources that already exist, whether that’s at NTC or through the 
community where they live. Although this community and many others have resources, she said they 
can be hard to find and even more difficult to navigate.   

67/81



“That’s where I come in, and I help connect students to those resources,” she said. “I have a lot of 
background and knowledge, know all the little nuances and help navigate the red tape.”   

She can help students determine which resources they are eligible for and how to apply.   

Because funding is a limited resource, eligibility requirements tend to get tighter, which can leave a lot 
of people in a grey area. They may have a job and are still struggling to meet their needs.  

“I give a disclaimer to everyone that I don’t have any magic wants to fix problems,” Skye said. “If 
someone has a need where a resource doesn’t exist or they don’t qualify, I do my best to problem solve 
with them and get creative with how to meet that need with what they do have.”    

Skye’s position is new at NTC, so she has been able to help build it from the ground up, and she said it’s 
been going well so far. She added that staff and students alike have been excited to have this role on 
campus.   

“From my very first day, it’s been very apparent that this is a need here and that staff were going to 
utilize me in my role,” she Skye said. “I can tell that staff and faculty truly care about their students 
succeeding.”   

Students can seek out assistance on their own, but that can be hard, especially when they have a lot on 
their plates. Staff and faculty can also refer students to Skye.   

“I really advocate for that warm hand off so that it’s not the student’s responsibility to reach out to 
make that connection,” she said. “It’s intimidating, especially when they have 100 things going on and 
maybe have never asked for help before. Sometimes us reaching out really opens that door for them.”   

Skye said she is looking forward to connecting with more students and looking at what kinds of larger 
outreach can be done to reach students, especially those who wouldn’t come on their own.   

Students she’s been able to help so far have reached out to thank her, and that has meant a lot.   

“I can tell they weren’t expecting this level of support,” Skye said. “Even if I wasn’t able to pull out a 
magic wand to fix it, it meant something that NTC cared enough to ask them if they needed help.”   

Students can connect with Skye at mucha@ntc.edu.   

68/81



      

69/81



   

70/81



   

71/81



     

72/81



    
 

73/81



      

74/81



    

75/81



    

76/81



      
 

77/81



     
 

78/81



    

79/81



Date DMA
Sort By

Export to Excel » Ascending
Order:

Reports

Name Report

WQOW (ABC) 1/8/2025 10:17:13 PM
La Crosse, WI
10 pm News Report
easier enrollment process. open enrollment ends on january. 15th in most
states including wisconsin aspire u.s. in northcentral technical college are
working to bring new technology into health care, education. they're looking to
get students experience in clinical scenarios that they might not get during
traditional training. hopefully allowing them to feel more prepared for real
world challenges. re champaign, the manager of ucation technology at
northcentral technical college says this collaboration help strengthen the
community. >> but now with the challenging aspects of being a new grad in
the clinical setting, innovative teaching strategies are really needed to help
bolster prepare the students and nurses too care

WAOW (ABC) 1/8/2025 10:17:14 PM
Wausau, WI
News 9 WAOW at 10PM
Local Viewership: 3,093 Local Publicity Value: $219.30
tight and outreach and an easier enrollment process. open enrollment ends on
january. 15th in most states including wisconsin. aspire u.s. in northcentral
technical college are working to bring new technology into healthcare,
education. they are looking to give students experience in clinical scenarios
that they might not get during traditional training, hopefully allowing them to
feel more prepared for real world challenges reaching pain, the manager of
education technology at northcentral technical college says this collaboration
help strengthen the community. >> but now with the challenging aspects of
being a new grad in the clinical setting, innovative teaching strategies are
really needed to help bolster prepare the

WKOW (ABC) 1/8/2025 10:17:16 PM
Madison, WI
27 News @ 10
Local Viewership: 18,809 Local Publicity Value: $2,056.05
heightened outreach and an easier enrollment process. open enrollment ends
on january. 15th in most states, including wisconsin. aspire u.s. in northcentral
technical college are working to bring new technology into health care,
education. they are looking to give students experience in clinical scenarios
that they might not get during traditional training, hopefully allowing them to
feel more prepared for real world challenges. re champaign, the manager of
education technology at northcentral technical college says this collaboration
help strengthen the community. >> it now with the challenging aspects of
being a new grad in the clinical setting, innovative teaching strategies are
really needed to help

WQOW (ABC) 1/12/2025 10:07:25 PM
La Crosse, WI
WI News Now AT 10
additionally, he says people are being exposed to smoke, whether they can
smell it or not. he says this causes inflammation of the lungs. virus and
northcentral technical college in wausau are teaming up to provide health care
education in a brand-new way with a simulation center. this immersive reality
allow students to encounter scenarios they might not encounter during
traditional training, giving them a much deeper understanding than a typical
classroom. >> realistic aspect of it. and the structure to it is so similar to
clinical. so it's allowing me to be more comfortable with what i'm doing. as a
nurse and preparing myself for clinical.

2/3/25, 1:00 PM TVEyes Media Monitoring Suite - [Reports]

https://mms.tveyes.com/NetReport.aspx?ReportHash=c6cd3efb61f1b0eb8a86db7de5d24e9f 1/280/81



WAOW (ABC) 1/13/2025 6:55:14 AM
Wausau, WI
Wake Up Wisconsin 6AM on News 9
Local Viewership: 1,866 Local Publicity Value: $125.82
struggle. the male suspect ran away to another nearby residents leaving one of
the guns at the scene. people were ordered to evacuate and shelter at the
village hall. pilot is in northcentral technical college and was opened up a new
simulation center. this immersive reality allow students encounter scenarios
they might not during traditional training, giving them a much deeper
understanding that a typical classroom would. ali olaf and dozens of his
fairytale. friends were in wisconsin saturday for a fairytale ball. kids of all ages
were able to meet the characters, get autographs and have a dance party with
them. >> it was all part of a fundraiser for the playhouse group, a nonprofit
children's

WSAW (CBS) 1/30/2025 6:17:32 PM
Wausau, WI
NewsChannel 7 @ 6
Local Viewership: 20,407 Local Publicity Value: $1,013.58
page. the name will be announced on march 10th. people can submit their
ideas about the rib mountain state park trail concept. next month, there's an
in-person meeting at northcentral technical college in wausau. the trail concept
is part of the park's property master plan. it includes a multiuse community
path, a trail for bikes, and more. if you want to submit

Items in this report: 6

Total Local Viewership: 44,175
Total Local Market Publicity Value: $3,414.75

Copyright ©1999 - 2025 TVEyes, Inc. All rights reserved.
Questions, comments, or suggestions? Send us feedback.

Privacy Policy

2/3/25, 1:00 PM TVEyes Media Monitoring Suite - [Reports]

https://mms.tveyes.com/NetReport.aspx?ReportHash=c6cd3efb61f1b0eb8a86db7de5d24e9f 2/281/81


	NTC Board Agenda-February 11, 2025-PUBLIC NOTICE
	New Early Childhood Education Apprenticeship Program
	Receipts + Expenditures
	Personnel Changes
	Advisory Meeting Minutes
	Upcoming Meetings + Events
	Good News

